
 

Port of Olympia Mission 
Create economic opportunities by connecting Thurston County to the world by air, land & sea. 

 
 

 
Commission Meeting 

Monday, September 12, 2022 
5:30 PM 

Percival Plaza - Olympics Room 
626 Columbia Street NW 

Olympia, WA 98501 
www.portolympia.com 

The meeting agenda is available on the Port’s website as of September 8, 2022. 
https://www.portolympia.com/commission 

Written public comments may be submitted to commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com by 12:00 p.m. on the  
date of the meeting. All written comments will be compiled and sent to the Commissioners prior to the meeting. 

Verbal public comment is accepted in person at the meeting.  If an individual would have difficulty physically  
attending the meeting, they may request the option to provide verbal comment remotely. 

If you wish to make verbal public comment remotely, please register in advance by 12:00 p.m.  
the day of the meeting by emailing commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com. 

Please indicate the method which you will be giving public comment (computer or phone).  
Individual public comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Approval of Agenda 
D. Executive Director Report 
E. Public Comment  
F. Consent Calendar: 

1.  None 
G. Action Calendar: 

1.  WPPA Shared Staff Interlocal Agreement - Lisa Parks, Executive Services Director 
 

The public may join the meeting from their computer, tablet or smartphone at: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81882179803 
 

or Telephone:  1 253 215 8782   
 

Webinar ID:  818 8217 9803 

Please note that the Zoom link changes for each meeting. 

https://www.portolympia.com/commission
mailto:commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com
mailto:commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com


 

Port of Olympia Mission 
Create economic opportunities by connecting Thurston County to the world by air, land & sea. 

H. Action/Other Calendar: 
1.  None 

2.  Public Comment on Action/Other Items 

I. Advisory Calendar: 
1.  Centennial Legacy Project – Lisa Parks, Executive Services Director 
2.  Marine Center Scope Affirmation – Lisa Parks, Executive Services Director 
3.  Resolution 2022-XX Rules Resolution – Sam Gibboney, Executive Director 
4.  Redistricting Process – Sam Gibboney, Executive Director 
5.  Public Comment on Advisory Items  

J. Commissioner Reports/Discussion 
K. Other Business 
L. Meeting Announcements 
M. Adjourn 
 
 
 



   

 
 COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

BRIEFING DATE/TIME:  September 12, 2022 

DEPARTMENT: Environmental 

STAFF CONTACT/TITLE: 
Lisa Parks 
Telephone: 360.528.8020 
Email:  Lisap@portolympia.com 

TOPIC: Interlocal Agreement for Federal Permit Review Liaisons 

PURPOSE: 
Check all that apply 

       Information only 
       Decision needed 
       Follow up from previous briefing 

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW: 

The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) are 
authorized by Federal law to host Liaison staff in their offices who are paid for by other entities and 
dedicated to work on those entities’ projects.  In July of 2020, the Port of Olympia signed an Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA) with 10 other Puget Sound ports and the Washington Public Ports Association 
(WPPA) to cooperatively hire and fund a dedicated staff biologist (Liaison) to expedite Federal permit 
reviews and consultations.   Partners to the ILA included Washington Public Ports Association (WPPA) 
and the Ports of Anacortes, Bellingham, Everett, Kalama, Longview, Olympia, Port Angeles, Seattle, 
Tacoma and Vancouver USA. 
 
The term of the original ILA was from July, 2020 through June 30, 2025, WPPA served as the employer 
to the one position, and the cost of the position was shared by all 10 ports based on the WPPA 
member dues formula.  In the summer of 2021, the Partners identified a work load and significant 
backlog of permits waiting review/action by the Services, and began conversations centered around 
options and alternatives for hiring a second position.  In the fall of 2021, the existing staff person 
moved to a different position, and the WPPA staff person supervising the position also left that 
organization.  Throughout the rest of 2021 and into 2022 representatives of the Partner Ports met to 
discuss options and funding methodologies for supporting two staff positions, with WPPA assisting 
with legal services to draft a new ILA. 
 
The attached new ILA is the result of those efforts, outlining a different approach for achieving the 
original goals of the partnership: to cooperatively establish and fund Liaison positions to realize 
important beneficial efficiencies and enhanced compliance with federal environmental requirements.  
Generally, the approach is outlined below: 
 

• Two Liaisons are hired as employees of the Northwest Seaport Alliance (NWSA).  One position 
is dedicated to the work of the NWSA (essentially, ports of Tacoma and Seattle) and one 
position is dedicated to the work of the remaining eight port districts (Anacortes, Bellingham, 
Everett, Kalama, Longview, Olympia, Port Angeles and Vancouver USA). 

• The fully burdened cost of the 8-Port position (estimated @ $183,600) is paid for upfront, by 
March 1 of each year, based on the WPPA membership dues formula. 



   

• Work of the position is tracked hourly by project and by port district throughout the year. 
• By January 31 of the next year, a “true-up” is performed based on hours worked by port 

district, and an appropriate credit (low hourly use) or debit (high hourly use) is applied to the 
calculated, fully burdened position cost for that year. 

• WPPA serves as the financial agent, collecting payments from the 8 ports, tracking time, 
project and financial information and calculating the “true-up” at the end of each calendar 
year. 

• The hourly rate paid by member Ports is calculated at 85% of the fully burdened hourly rate 
for the position.  Other, non-member ports may be allowed to utilize the Liaison if the work 
load allows, with an hourly rate of 180% of the fully burdened hourly rate. 

 
This methodology allows for the annual fee paid by each of the 8 ports to be modified based on the 
hours used, as opposed to the previous ILA which had a set annual fee that was not reflective of hours 
used.  For the Port of Olympia, there weren’t any permits we needed assistance with in 2021 or 2022, 
but it is possible we will need assistance with permits in each of the next several years, beginning in 
2023.  Throughout August and September the Partners will be reviewing and considering approval of 
the ILA, and several have already taken affirmative action, including the Ports of Seattle and Tacoma 
(as the authorizing entities for the NWSA), and the Ports of Kalama, Port Angeles and Vancouver USA. 
 
Staff is recommending the Commission authorize the ED to sign the ILA at the September 12, 2022 
regular Commission meeting. 
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

 Power Point Presentation 
 Interlocal Agreement 

 
 



9/8/2022

1

Interlocal Agreement: 
Federal Permit 

Review Liaisons

Lisa Parks
Executive Services Director

August 8, 2022

Interlocal Agreement: Federal Permit Review Liaisons
• Purpose: Cooperatively establish and fund two technical liaison positions to assist 

nine Puget Sound ports with securing in-water Federal permits required by National 
Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and/or US Fish and Wildlife Service.

• Partners:

Purpose and Partners

2



9/8/2022

2

Interlocal Agreement: Federal Permit Review Liaisons
• Hire two positions, both are employees of NWSA

• One dedicated to NWSA (Tacoma and Seattle)
• One dedicated to the remaining 8 ports 

• Fully burdened cost of one position paid to NWSA upfront based on WPPA dues 
formula to determine pro rata share 

• Work hours are tracked by project and port district
• “True-up” at end of year based on hours used

• Member ports rate - 85% of fully burdened hourly rate 
• Non Member ports rate - 180% of fully burdened hourly rate
• Heavy hourly users may owe additional funds at beginning of next year
• Low/no hourly users may have a credit that is applied to the next year’s 

upfront payment.

• WPPA serves as financial agent

New Methodology Overview

3

Interlocal Agreement: Federal Permit Review Liaisons

Future In-Water Permit Needs:

• Berth 1 Repair

• Marina Breakwater

• Programmatic Pier 
Repair/Replacement

• Sediment Cleanup

• Maintenance Dredging

Port of Olympia Permit Needs & Benefits

4

Benefits:

• Available technical expertise

• Rapport with Services

• Collective knowledge/experience

• Beneficial efficiencies

• Enhanced Compliance

• Cost Savings 



9/8/2022

3

Interlocal Agreement: Federal Permit Review Liaisons

Suggested Motion…
“…move to authorize the Executive Director to sign 
the 2022 Interlocal Agreement for Federal Permit 
Review Liaisons, as presented.” 

5



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 1 

2022 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
FOR 

FEDERAL PERMIT REVIEW LIAISONS 
 

This Interlocal Agreement (the "Agreement") is between the following (referred to herein individually as 
a "Party" and collectively as the  "Parties”): 
 

the PORT OF ANACORTES 
the PORT OF BELLINGHAM 
the PORT OF EVERETT 
the PORT OF KALAMA 
the PORT OF LONGVIEW 
the PORT OF OLYMPIA 
the PORT  OF PORT ANGELES 
the PORT OF VANCOUVER USA 
the NORTHWEST SEAPORT ALLIANCE 
and 
the WASHINGTON PUBLIC PORTS ASSOCIATION 

 
WHEREAS, the port districts named above are Washington public port districts (the “Districts”). 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Seaport Alliance (“NWSA”) is a port development authority created 
and existing pursuant to Title 53 RCW. 

WHEREAS, the Washington Public Ports Association is organized pursuant to chapter 53.06 RCW 
(the “WPPA”). 

WHEREAS, in 2008 the Districts noted above along with the Port of Tacoma and the Port of 
Seattle (as predecessors to the NWSA) entered into an interlocal agreement for a federal permit review 
(the “2008 Interlocal”) to fund a port district and dedicated a NMFS liaison to expedite applicable permit 
reviews and consultations. 

WHEREAS, the Districts and the NWSA each engage in projects requiring permit review by, or 
consultations with, the National Marine Fisheries Service and/or the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service (respectively, "NMFS" and "USFWS" and collectively "Services"). 

WHEREAS, the Services are authorized by federal law, and have agreed in a Memorandum of 
Agreement between the NWSA and each Service (the "MOAs"), attached as Appendices A & B hereto, to 
host within the Services’ offices two NWSA employees (the "Liaisons") in the position of staff biologist to 
assist the Districts and the NWSA to comply with the Endangered Species Act and other authorities or 
environmental regulations regarding listed species thereby resulting in focused document review, 
project coordination on applicable projects and expedited permit processing by the Services. 

WHEREAS, one of the Liaisons will be dedicated to assist NWSA on its projects (the “NWSA 
Liaison”) and the other will be dedicated to assist the Districts on their projects (the “Districts Liaison).  



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 2 

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize that each District will realize important beneficial efficiencies 
and enhanced compliance with federal environmental requirements from the Districts Liaison’s work on 
permit applications and; therefore, desire to enter into a collaboration and cooperative arrangement to 
provide for and fund the one (1) Districts Liaison to work on District projects. 

WHEREAS, on behalf of the Districts, the NWSA has agreed to: (i) hire, employ, supervise and 
pay the compensation of the Districts Liaison as a full-time NWSA employee, including salary, benefits, 
leave, and other appropriate overhead costs according to NWSA employment policies; and (ii) pay any 
other fees charged by the Services directly related to the District Liaison (collectively the "Districts 
Liaison Costs") as further defined below. 

WHEREAS, the Districts have agreed to pay, according to the terms of this Agreement, to the 
NWSA, the full amount of the annual Districts Liaison Costs.  

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Districts Liaison will work for the Districts and the other 
NWSA Liaison will work for the NWSA although it is recognized that the Liaisons will be available to work 
on behalf of Districts and/or the NWSA as primary workloads permit. 

WHEREAS, the NWSA permits are for work on or adjacent to property owned by the Port of 
Tacoma and the Port of Seattle. 

WHEREAS, the Districts appreciate the willingness of the NWSA to undertake the administration 
of the Districts Liaison under this Agreement.  

WHEREAS, the Parties are authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to the lnterlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, hereby agree as follows: 

A. Purpose, Utilization and Exhibits. 

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to cooperatively establish and fund the Districts 
Liaison position for the primary support of the Districts’ applications to the Services.  The Districts 
Liaison will prioritize permit applications, with coordination of the Districts’ project manager and 
representative, submitted by the Districts and process consultations for said permit applications to 
promote focused document review and project coordination on applicable District projects. It is 
expected that this will enhance the Districts’ ability to comply with the Endangered Species Act and 
other authorities or environmental regulations regarding listed species in a timely manner. 

2. The Districts shall utilize the Districts Liaison to interface with the Services in support of 
their respective federal permit applications. 

3. The following exhibits are appended to this Agreement and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Exhibit A MOA between the NMFS and NWSA 
Exhibit B MOA between the USFWS and NWSA 
Exhibit C Formula for allocation of cost of the Districts Liaison 

 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 3 

B. The Districts' Obligations.  The Districts are obligated under this Agreement as follows: 

1. For a period of five years (years 2023-2027) annually contribute their respective pro-
rata share of the Districts Liaison Costs to the NWSA in a timely manner; provided that the Districts shall 
not be responsible to cover NWSA costs arising from employment claims asserted by the Districts Liaison 
or employee/employer disputes. 

2. Collectively appoint a Districts’ project manager (the “Districts’ Project Manager”) to (i) 
represent the Districts in meetings with NWSA and the Services, (ii) schedule periodic meetings of the 
Districts and/or NWSA as may be necessary to implement this Agreement, (iii) if necessary, make the 
final determination as to the work priorities of the Liaison assigned to the Districts and (iv) be the point 
of contact between the Districts and the NWSA.   

3. Appoint a representative (the “District Representative”) to be the contact for their 
respective District for the purpose of implementing this Agreement, including but not limited to, (i) 
working with NWSA to develop appropriate chargeable hour tracking procedures, (ii) participating in 
meetings with the NWSA, other Representatives and the Districts’ Project Manager, and (iii) if necessary, 
assist in determining work priorities of the Districts Liaison. 

4. Cooperate together and with NWSA to determine, no later than August 31, 2022, and 
annually thereafter, the subsequent year's budget for the Districts Liaison Costs, including the payment 
of any Districts Liaison Cost incurred by NWSA in excess of the then-current year's budget, and each 
District's individual portion thereof (the “Allocated Share"). 

5. Commencing in the fall of 2023, and annually thereafter, include in its adopted annual 
budget for the ensuing year adequate funds to pay its Allocated Share. 

6. No later than sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, provide its Allocated Share as set 
forth in Exhibit C hereto, and within 30 days after receipt of an invoice in subsequent years. 

7. Take all reasonably required actions to work with the other Districts and the NWSA in a 
collaborative manner to conduct, monitor, and adapt this Agreement in the best interest of all Parties. 

8. Act promptly and reasonably to address any request from other port districts to join this  
Agreement. 

9. Cooperate with the NWSA to evaluate the performance of the Districts Liaison. 

C. NWSA's Obligations.  NWSA is obligated under this Agreement as follows: 

1. Administer this Agreement and the MOAs according to its terms and conditions and 
perform duties set forth herein in furtherance of a successful liaison program and in a manner 
consistent with the MOAs with the Services. 

2. For each calendar year during the existence of this Agreement establish, after 
consultation with the Districts, an "Annual Budget" by no later than August 31 for the following year. 

3. As part of the Annual Budget, provide the Fully Burdened Hourly Rate for the Districts 
Liaison.  The term “Fully Burdened Hourly Rate” means: 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 4 

a. The salary x 1.5 (to account for benefits) = “Full Salary;” and then, 

b. The Full Salary x 1.20 (to account for the NWSA overhead) = “NWSA Full Salary;” 
and then, 

c. The NWSA Full Salary x 1.02 (to account for the WPPA fee) = the “Fully 
Burdened Hourly Rate.”   

4. Pay all reasonable and necessary expenses related hereto and account fully to the 
Districts for such expenses during July of each year starting in 2023. 

5. Select (in consultation with the Districts Project Manager), employ and supervise 
(including, as appropriate, discipline or terminate) the District Liaison as a NWSA employee to perform 
the duties described in the MOAs.  The District Liaison will be compensated, receive benefits, attend 
conferences and receive technical training consistent with NWSA human resource policies.  To be clear 
NWSA will employ the Districts Liaison for a minimum of five years based, in part, upon the five-year 
commitments from the Districts.  If a Districts Liaison resigns or is terminated from employment, NWSA 
shall select (in consultation with the Districts) and employ a replacement.  To be clear, Districts may 
interact with the Districts Liaison to address routine issues that may arise during application review but 
shall in no manner supervise the Districts Liaison's work. 

6. Provide supervision and evaluation of the Districts Liaison consistent with the MOAs and 
the human resource policies of NWSA and to reasonably conduct the purposes of this Agreement.  The 
Districts Liaison shall be subject to the performance expectations of the NWSA and is subject to NWSA 
sole discretion with regard to employee performance and management, including any decisions relating 
to compensation, discipline, or termination.   

 7. To the extent permitted by law, save, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Districts 
from third-party claims, demands or damages arising from the Districts Liaison’s acts or omissions that 
occurred or are alleged to have occurred in the course and scope of their employment.  Additionally, 
NWSA will save, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Districts from any claims, demands or 
damages brought by the Districts Liaison relating to their employment with NWSA.  This defense and 
indemnity obligation shall not apply to a District to the extent that the claim, demand, or damages arise 
from that District’s acts, omissions, or conduct.   

 8. Track the chargeable time for the Districts Liaison’s time by project and by port district 
and provide a report/spreadsheet to the Districts.  

D. The WPPA Accounting Function.  

 1. The WPPA shall function as the financial agent for this Agreement.  As financial agent, 
the WPPA shall: 

  a. Periodically receive reports from the NWSA tracking time for the Districts 
Liaison’s time by project and by port districts. 

b. Upon request, provide time, project and financial information to the Districts. 

  c. Where the services of the Districts Liaison are utilized by a port district that is 
not a Party to this Agreement, bill such port district using the rate established herein. 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 5 

  d. On or before January 31 of each year, perform the true-up required herein and 
circulate the draft true-up calculation to each District Representative.  On or before February 15 of each 
year, the WPPA will work to resolve any concerns of the District Representatives and issue a final 
calculation of the account for each District.   

  e.  On or before March 1 of each year, receive the payments due for the following 
year from Districts. 

  f. After receiving payments from the Districts forward the amount equal to the 
Annual Budget to the NWSA. 

  g. Maintain any excess funds for application to subsequent years’ Annual Budget. 

h. Recognizing that the true-up procedure will yield credits or debits to various 
Districts, (i) any excess funds will be held by the WPPA and (ii) the credits and debits will be applied in 
following years’ allocations.  By way of example only, a District that has paid its allocated share for a 
year and not used the services of the Districts Liaison would expect to receive a credit as a result of the 
true-up procedure.  This credit would be applied by the WPPA for the following year’s allocated share. 

 2. The WPPA shall be paid two (2%) of the Annual Budget for providing the services 
described herein (the “WPPA Fee”).  The Annual Budget shall be adjusted each year to include the WPPA 
Fee.  

E. Withdrawal By Parties.   

1. A District may withdraw from this Agreement by providing written notice to all other 
Parties of its intent to withdraw from this Agreement no later than September 30th of any year with 
withdrawal effective on December 31st of the following year (the “Exit Date”).   Any permit work by the 
Districts Liaison prioritized for the withdrawing District under this Agreement shall continue until the 
Exit Date. 

2. The Exit Date for any District providing notice of withdrawal after September 30, shall 
be December 31st of the second year thereafter. 

3. The withdrawing District shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or repayment of its 
paid Allocated Share. 

4. So long as the cost of the Districts Liaison is paid to NWSA by the Districts, the NWSA 
shall not withdraw during the term of this Agreement. 

F. Addition of Parties and Project Assistance. 

 1. The Parties, by majority vote of the District Representatives and the affirmative vote of 
the representative of the NWSA, may allow another port district to join this Agreement under such 
terms and conditions as the Parties may determine. 

 2. The Parties, by majority vote of the District Representatives and the affirmative vote of 
the representative of the NWSA, may allow another port district without joining this Agreement to 
utilize the Districts Liaison for assistance on a particular project as provided in this Agreement and under 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 6 

such terms and conditions as the Parties may determine.  Provided, that no such agreement shall delay 
or interfere with any permit work being performed for a District under this Agreement.  

 3. NWSA may allow another port district to utilize the NWSA Liaison for assistance on a 
particular project under such terms and conditions as NWSA may determine.  Provided, that no such 
agreement shall delay or interfere with any permit work being performed for a District under this 
Agreement. 

G. Determination of Annual Budget, Allocated Shares and True-Up. 

1. The determination of each District's Allocated Share for any year shall be based on the 
Annual Budget established by NWSA as provided herein. The Annual Budget shall not include any 
allocated NWSA corporate overhead or NWSA human resource department expenses.  For any partial 
year, the Annual Budget and the District's Allocated Shares shall be prorated based on the period during 
which the Liaison is employed. 

 2. The Allocated Shares for the Port of Kalama, Port of Longview, and Port of Vancouver, 
shall be based on an average of the Allocated Share determined for each. 

H. Effective Date, Term, and Agreement Termination. 

1. The "Effective Date" of this Agreement shall be the last day upon which all the Parties  
have executed this Agreement. 

2. The "Term" of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and end on December 
31, 2027, unless extended by written agreement of the Parties. To provide reasonable notice to the 
Liaisons and the Services, the Parties shall attempt, but not be required, to reach an agreement 
extending--or not extending--this Agreement by June 30, 2026. 

3. So long as the cost of the Districts Liaison is covered by the Districts, this Agreement 
may be terminated prior to the end of the Term only upon agreement  of all Districts and the NWSA.  In 
such an event the Parties will agree on a reasonable termination date. 

4. Upon termination of this Agreement, all Parties’ obligations hereunder shall end, and 
any funds held as an Allocated Share credit shall be distributed to the respective Parties entitled 
thereto. 

I. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

1. Any notice, demand, or communication required or permitted under this Agreement 
shall be addressed to the respective Representative and deemed to have been duly given (i) on the date 
of delivery if delivered by courier, (ii) three business days after posting a postage pre-paid first class 
letter addressed to the mailing address of the Party, or (iii) upon confirmation by the intended recipient 
of the receipt of email addressed to the Party to whom directed at the relevant Party's email address 
specified below its signature. 

 2. Pursuant to RCW 39.34.030 it is acknowledged that:  

a. This Agreement shall not be construed to create any entity. 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 7 

b. The NWSA shall be the Administrator of this Agreement. 

c. No property--real, personal or intangible--shall be acquired by the Parties 
collectively or individually pursuant to this Agreement. 

3. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State  of Washington.  Any action to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be 
brought either in Thurston County, Washington or in the county wherein the Party that is the subject of 
the enforcement action is located. 

4. This Agreement may not be amended except by the unanimous written agreement of all 
the  Parties. 

5. Whenever the singular number is used in this Agreement and when required by the 
context, the same shall include the plural and vice versa, and the masculine gender shall include the 
feminine and neuter genders and vice versa. 

6. The headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect 
the interpretations of this Agreement. 

7. The failure of any Party to seek redress for violation of or to insist upon the strict 
performance of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not prevent a subsequent act, which 
would have originally constituted a violation, from having the effect of an original violation. 

8. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person, entity or 
circumstance shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement 
and the application thereof shall not be affected and shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted 
by  law. 

9. All covenants, promises and performances which are not fully performed as of the date 
of termination shall survive termination as binding obligations. 

10. Each of the provisions of this Agreement has been reviewed, negotiated, and represents 
the combined work product of all parties hereto.  No presumption or other rules of construction which 
would interpret the provisions of this Agreement in favor of or against the party preparing the same 
shall be applicable in connection with the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

11. This Agreement is not assignable absent written approval by all Parties, which approval 
shall be granted, withheld, or conditioned in the discretion of each party. Each of the covenants, terms, 
provisions, and agreements herein contained shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and, to the extent permitted by this Agreement, their respective legal representatives, 
successors, and assigns. 

12. This Agreement is not for the benefit of any individual or entity other than the Parties 
and shall not be enforceable thereby under any circumstances whatsoever. 

13. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in counterparts and once so 
signed by all Parties and posted to each Party’s web site in accordance with RCW 39.34, shall have full 



 
2022 Interlocal Agreement 
for Federal Permit Review Liaisons - Pg. 8 

force and effect.  PDF copies of relevant signature pages or electronic signatures shall be treated as 
originals.  Each of the undersigned warrant that they have authority to execute this Agreement. 

14. The entire agreement (including the recitals and the amendments) between the Parties 
hereto is contained in this Agreement, and this Agreement supersedes all of their previous 
understandings and agreements, written and oral, with respect to this transaction.  This Agreement may 
be amended only by written instrument executed by the parties subsequent to the date hereof. 

 
PORT OF ANACORTES 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF BELLINGHAM 
 
________________________ 
By:  _____________________ 
Its:  _____________________ 
Email:  _______________________ 

PORT OF EVERETT 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF KALAMA 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF LONGVIEW 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF OLYMPIA 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF PORT ANGELES 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

PORT OF VANCOUVER USA 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

NORTHWEST SEAPORT ALLIANCE 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

WASHINGTON PUBLIC PORTS ASSOCIATION 
 
_______________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its:  ____________________ 
Email:  ______________________ 
 

 



 

 
Exhibit C 

Formula to Determine Allocated Share for Each District 
 
 

Step 1:  The Districts Will Determine Each Districts 
Percentage Share of the Annual Budget 

 
A. Using the formula then in effect to assess WPPA membership dues according to the 

WPPA Bylaws, determine each District’s percentage share of the Annual Budget for the 
following year. 

B. Average the percentage share for the Port of Kalama, Port of Longview, and Port of  
Vancouver. 

C. Using the percentages x the Annual Budget determine each District’s presumed  annual 
contribution.  In the first year this amount will be paid.  

D. In subsequent years, each District’s presumed annual contribution will be adjusted to a 
final annual contribution using the true-up procedure noted herein. 

   
 

Step 2:  NWSA Tracks Project Time 
 

A. NWSA tracks the chargeable hours of the Districts Liaison by “project” and by “port 
district” for both member Districts and non-member Districts.  The NWSA will provide a 
spreadsheet on a shared site periodically updated showing the amount of time charged 
to each project and each port district. The spreadsheet may include notes of what work 
was performed for the time charged. 

 
Step 3:  The WPPA Performs an Annual True-Up 

 of Each Districts Allocated Share 
 
A. On or before January 31, the WPPA will perform a “true-up” using the following rules 
 

1. The total hours tracked will be multiplied by: 
a. For member Districts, 85% of the previous year’s fully burdened 

hourly rate. 
b. For non-member Districts 180% of the previous year’s fully 

burdened hourly rate. 
2. The result of the calculations will yield “notational revenue.” 
3. Non-member Districts will be billed according to this formula by the WPPA 

District which will hold the funds until disbursed as provided in this Exhibit C.   
4. The “notational revenue” which includes the actual revenue from non-member 

Districts and the amount owed by the member Districts will be used to first 
offset the Annual Budget. 



 

5. Any amount of “notational revenue” above the Annual Budget will be credited to 
the member Districts by percentage.   

6. A true-up will be performed using the notational revenue.  Port districts that 
were heavy hourly uses may owe additional funds even after the credit against 
their initial payment.  Other port districts may be entitled to a credit.   

7. The credits will be maintained by the WPPA for application in following years. In 
the event this Agreement is terminated each port district will receive the balance 
of their account less its prorate share of final expenses. 

  
 
  

 



   

 
 COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

BRIEFING DATE/TIME:  September 12, 2022  

DEPARTMENT: Executive 

STAFF CONTACT/TITLE: 
Lisa Parks 
Telephone: 360.528.8020 
Email: LisaP@PortOlympia.com  

TOPIC: Centennial Legacy Project 

PURPOSE: 
Check all that apply 

       Information only 
       Decision needed 
       Follow up from previous briefing 

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW: 

Port of Olympia is celebrating its Centennial with a Centennial Legacy Project.  
 
Port staff created a Legacy Project Team, who brainstormed project ideas. After five ideas were 
selected, the Legacy Team sent a survey to Port Staff asking them to select their top four choices.  
 
After Port staff made their selections, a survey was sent to the community to narrow down to one 
project idea. The community selected a fog bell as their preferred project among the project ideas 
proposed.  
 
The 2022 Capital Budget includes $50,000 for planning, design, engineering and permitting of the 
Legacy Project, with construction of the project anticipated on the 2023 capital budget. 
 
Today’s presentation is to update the Commission on the overall process staff has undertaken for the 
Centennial Legacy Project this year.  Staff hopes to gain Commission input and direction.   

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

 Power Point Presentation 

 

mailto:LisaP@PortOlympia.com


9/8/2022

1

PRESENTATION TITLE

NAME
TITLE

DATE

Inspiration for a Legacy Project

2



9/8/2022

2

More Inspiration 

3

Background
Port Staff Legacy Team: 

• Emily Madsen

• Jessie Bensley

• Jennie Foglia-Jones

• Clarita Mattox

• TJ Quandt

4



9/8/2022

3

Legacy Project Timeline:  2022

• Commission Selects a Project 

• Begin…

• Design
• Engineering 
• Permitting

5

Legacy Project Timeline: 2023

• Complete D/E/P

• Complete Construction

6



9/8/2022

4

What to Build? 
Survey to Staff in May/June:

• Monument Sign
• Fog Bell
• Clock
• Commissioned Art 
• Historical/Community Wall

Survey to Public in August/September

• Monument Sign (12)
• Fog Bell (119) WINNER
• Clock (25)
• Commissioned Art (32)

WINNER
7

Next Steps… 

Commission 

Input & Direction 

8



   

 
 COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

BRIEFING DATE/TIME:  September 12, 2022  

DEPARTMENT: Executive 

STAFF CONTACT/TITLE: 
Lisa Parks 
Telephone: 360.528.8020 
Email: Lisap@portolympia.com 

TOPIC: Marine Center Scope Affirmation 

PURPOSE: 
Check all that apply 

       Information only 
       Decision needed 
       Follow up from previous briefing 

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW: 

Staff will provide an overview of the Marine Center project, including background information, a 
description of the partnership with the Puget Sound Estuarium, and a discussion of benefits and 
synergies that are anticipated from the project.  Staff has also provided a recommendation for 
continuing forward with the project in a way that doesn’t limit the Port in its available options to 
construct the Marine Center project, or to implement the additional components of the Destination 
Waterfront plan.  A copy of the final report of the Destination Waterfront Development Vision is 
printed and included in the “Commissioner Binders” that were compiled and provided to the 
Commission in January of this year. 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

 Power Point Presentation 
 Capital Budget Appropriation Request, including sample letters of support 

 



9/8/2022

1

Marine Center Briefing

Lisa Parks, Executive Services Director

September 12, 2022

TJ Quandt, Senior Harbor Master

Paris McClusky, Executive Director, Puget Sound Estuarium

Background: Timeline

2

2021202020192018

2018
• POCAC Report: Port Office Consolidation

• Vision 2050 Process

2019
• Vision 2050 Action Plan

• Marina/Admin Office Alternatives Evaluation, MSGS Architects
• Port-Wide Asset Assessment

2020
• CERB Planning Only Grant for Destination Waterfront

2021
• Destination Waterfront Vision Plan
• State Capital Budget Appropriation



9/8/2022

2

Background:

Vision 2050 
Action Plan

3

Background:

Destination 
Waterfront
Vision Plan

4



9/8/2022

3



9/8/2022

4



9/8/2022

5

Marine Center Site Plan

10



9/8/2022

6

Background
Puget Sound Estuarium (PSE) Partnership & Capital Budget $$

11

Puget Sound Estuarium

12

Who We Are

Our Role In the Partnership

Update on Our Work



9/8/2022

7

Benefits & Synergies

13

 Proximity
 A Central Hub
Mission Community
 Shared Space
 Outdoor Space
 Positive Impact
 A Place to Start

Recommendation

14

 Continue with Initial Design of a Shared Facility
 Puget Sound Estuarium
 Shared Indoor & Outdoor Space
 Commission meeting room

 Marina Office 
 Class A Office Space
 Port Admin?
 Other?

 Continue evaluating implementation & funding 
strategies for construction



9/8/2022

8

Questions?

15



Capital Budget Appropriation Request

























   

 
 COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

BRIEFING DATE/TIME:  September 12, 2022 

DEPARTMENT: Executive 

STAFF CONTACT/TITLE: 
Sam Gibboney 
Telephone: 360.528.8001 
Email:  samg@portolympia.com 

TOPIC: Resolution 2022-XX Commission Rules Update 

PURPOSE: 
Check all that apply 

       Information only 
       Decision needed 
       Follow up from previous briefing 

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW: 

Resolution 2022-06 a Resolution of the Port of Olympia Commission adopting rules governing 
the transaction of business of the Port Commission is commonly referred to as the Rules 
Resolution.  The Commission revises it from time to time.  It was last revised on July 25, 2022.   
 
Commissioner Iyall requested that the Commission consider revising the Rules Resolution, 
specifically to consider adding a Pending Issues and Business agenda item to Article V Order 
of Business.   
 
The attached redlined version reflects this request and is included for Commission consideration.   

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

 Resolution 2022-XX “Rules Resolution” 

 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 1 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION 2022-06XX 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION  

 ADOPTING RULES GOVERNING THE TRANSACTION  
OF PORT COMMISSION BUSINESS AND SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION 2022-053 

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Olympia Commission seeks to adopt rules governing the 

transaction of Port Commission business as required by RCW 53.12.245; 
 
AND WHEREAS, this Resolution supersedes Port of Olympia Commission Resolution 

2020-06; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Olympia Commission 
hereby adopts the Rules set forth below, which shall be effective upon adoption. 

 
ARTICLE I 

Preamble 
 

These Rules will govern the transaction of business by the Port of Olympia Commission.   
 

ARTICLE II 
Organization of the Commission 

 
A.  The Commission will annually elect a President, Vice-President, and Secretary. 

 
B.  The Commission will elect officers at its first regular meeting at the beginning of 

each calendar year.  The term will run for one (1) year beginning when elected, and terminate at 
the election of a successor.  Vacancies in an office may be filled at any regular or special 
meeting of the Commission. 
 

ARTICLE III 
Duties of Officers 

 
A. The President shall: 

 
Preside at all meetings of the Commission and during executive sessions of the 

Commission in a manner consistent with these Rules; sign all resolutions, contracts, and other 
instruments on behalf of the Commission as authorized by the Commission; perform all such 
other duties as are incident to the office or are properly required by the Commission; meet with 
the Executive Director to prepare and review agendas and meeting packets as specified in this 
Resolution; and authorize the issuance of notices for regular and special meetings of the 
Commission as provided for in these Rules.



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 2 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

 
B. The Vice-President shall: 

 
During the absence or disability of the President, exercise all the functions of the 

President; and have such powers and discharge such duties as may be assigned from time to time 
by the Commission. 

 
C. The Secretary shall: 

 
Ensure the recording of the minutes, motions and resolutions adopted by the Commission 

by Port of Olympia staff; and otherwise perform such further duties as are incident to the office 
and as are properly required by the Commission. 
 

D. Temporary Absence: 
 

Any Commissioner who shall be elected to act for an incumbent elected officer during 
the temporary absence or disability of such officer shall exercise all the functions of the 
incumbent officer, but only during the continuance of the absence or disability of such official. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

Meetings 
 

A. Meetings Schedule: 
 

The Commission will adopt a calendar with its year-long schedule for its regular 
meetings at its first regular meeting of the calendar year, or the soonest meeting possible.  The 
Commission will post its calendar to provide notice of all meetings on its website at 
http://www.portolympia.com in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act (Ch. 42.30 
RCW).  The Commission schedule shall include a recess of approximately two-weeks the second 
half of the month in August and December.  Accordingly, the Commission schedule should 
reflect one regular meeting in both August and December. The Commission’s regular and special 
meetings shall be open and public except as otherwise provided by these Rules.  

 
B. Regular Meetings:  

 
The Port of Olympia Commission regular meetings are scheduled on the second and 

fourth Monday evenings of each month at 5:30 p.m. at the Port of Olympia, Percival Plaza, 626 
Columbia Street NW, Suite 1-B, Olympia, Washington, unless specified otherwise.  The Port 
will post the location of all regular meetings on its website at http://www.portolympia.com prior 
to each meeting date in compliance with the notice requirements of the Open Public Meeting Act 
. Regular meetings shall be open and public except as otherwise provided by these Rules. 
 

C. Work Sessions: 
 

The Port of Olympia Commission holds regular work sessions on the third Monday of 
each month at 2:30 p.m. at the Port of Olympia, Percival Plaza, 626 Columbia Street NW, Suite 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 3 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

1-B, Olympia, Washington, unless specified otherwise.  The Port will post the location of all 
work sessions on its website at http://www.portolympia.com at least 20 days prior to each work 
session date. 

 
The purpose of work sessions is three-fold:   

 
a. 1. Work sessions are an opportunity for the Commissioners to informally 

discuss Port issues and exchange ideas without the structure of a regular 
business meeting.  Consistent with this purpose, the Commissioners may 
propose topics for future work sessions during the “Other Business” 
agenda item at a regular business meeting.  The Commission will indicate 
their agreement to include a topic by voting as provided for in Art. V (E) 
herein.  Scheduling of topics for particular work sessions will be agreed 
upon by the President and the Executive Director, during their regular 
weekly meeting.  Attempts to schedule will not be made during a regular 
meeting or work session.  

 
a. 2. Work sessions are an opportunity for staff to present topics for 

preliminary feedback that may be considered later at a regular business 
meeting.  

 
b. 3.  Work sessions are an opportunity for the Executive Director to update 

the Commission on business, operational, and strategic issues for informal 
discussion.     Port staff will not add agenda items to work sessions except 
in response to a Commissioner request or with the President’s approval.   

 
The President will set the agenda for the work sessions with input from Commissioners 

and the Executive Director. Although the Commission may legally take action at a work session 
consistent with the Open Public Meetings Act (Ch. 42.30 RCW), it will strive to limit action 
during work sessions to extraordinary, exigent, or emergency circumstances where action is 
necessary prior to the Commission’s next scheduled regular meeting.  In the event action is taken 
during a work session, a period for public comment will be added to the agenda, after 
Commission discussion and prior to action being taken.  
 

Meeting materials for work sessions will be provided and made available to the public 
consistent with these Rules. 

 
C. Special Meetings: 

 
The President or any Commissioner may call a special meeting of the Commission by 

notifying the Executive Director and Commission Coordinator of the proposed meeting date and 
business to be transacted at the special meeting.  Notice of a requested special meeting under this 
provision must be provided sufficiently in advance of the requested special meeting date to allow 
Port staff to provide required twenty-four (24)-hour written notice of the meeting to 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 4 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Commissioners and to provide adequate public notice of the meeting and agenda, both of which 
are required under the Open Public Meetings Act. 

 
Special meetings shall be open and public except as otherwise provided by these Rules.  

A special meeting is limited to matters identified in the notice.  The Commission may hold an 
executive session during a special meeting with appropriate notice. 

 
 
D. . Executive Sessions:  

 
An executive session is understood to mean the part of a regular or special meeting of a 

governing body closed to the public.  The Commission may meet in executive session, which 
shall be closed to the public during a regular or special meeting for all the purposes permitted by 
the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30) and other laws, including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 
1. The consideration of matters affecting national security (RCW 

42.30.110(1)(a));  
 

2. The selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase, 
when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); 

 
3. The sale or lease of real estate when public knowledge regarding such 

consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); 
 

4. Review of negotiations on the performance of publicly bid contracts when 
public knowledge would cause a likelihood of increased costs (RCW 42.30.110(1)(d)); 

 
5. The appointment, employment, or dismissal of a public officer or 

employee; provided that, final action setting that salary, discharging or disciplining an employee, 
or interviewing or appointing a candidate to elective office shall be at an open public meeting 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) and (h)); 

 
6. The hearing of complaints or charges brought against such officer or 

employee unless such officer or employee requests a public hearing (RCW 42.30.110(1)(f)); 
 

7. That portion of a meeting during which the Commission is planning or 
adopting the strategy or position to be taken by the Commission during the course of any 
collective bargaining, professional negotiations, or grievance or mediation proceedings, or 
reviewing the proposals made in such negotiations or proceedings while in progress (RCW 
42.30.140(4)(a)), and; 

 
8. Communications with legal counsel respecting agency enforcement action, 

litigation or potential litigation to which the Port, the Commission, and/or a Commissioner or 
Port employee acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party when public 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 5 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial 
consequence to the Port (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)).  Port legal counsel is required to attend 
executive sessions called for this purpose. 

 
The Commission may invite Port staff or others with some relationship to the matter 

being discussed, or who provide assistance to the Commission, to the executive session. 
 
In order to avoid inconvenience to the public during regular meetings, the Commission 

will endeavor to hold executive sessions immediately prior to a regular meeting of the 
Commission and, if possible, at the same location or in close proximity to the location of the 
regular meeting.  Notwithstanding this provision, the Commission may enter into executive 
session during any meeting for any purpose consistent with the Open Public Meetings Act. 

 
The public meeting will be reconvened following an executive session.  Items discussed 

in the executive session will be considered during the meeting, as appropriate and required by 
law. 

 
Commissioners will not take notes during executive session using an electronic device 

such as, but not limited to, a computer, tablet, or cell phone.  Commissioners may take 
handwritten notes during executive session; however, all handwritten notes will be provided to 
the Executive Director at the conclusion of the executive session for appropriate retention. 
 

 
E. . Adjournment or Continuation to a Special Meeting: 

 
Adjournment or continuation to a special meeting, if necessary, shall be pursuant to 
notice as required by law. 
 
F.. Quorum: 

 
Two (2) Commissioners shall constitute a quorum for the convening of a meeting. 

 
G. Cancellation of a Meeting: 

 
The President may direct the cancellation of a regularly scheduled Commission meeting. 
 
H.  Administration of Meetings: 

 
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with these Rules.   
 
I.. Commissioner Remote Attendance:  

 
From time to time, a Commissioner may not be able to attend a Board of Commissioners 

meeting in person. The Commission recognizes the benefits of fullest practicable attendance and 
participation by its members. Attendance from remote locations is intended to be an alternative 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 6 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

and infrequently used method for participation by Commissioners. Attendance by remote 
communication may occur as follows: 
 

1. Consistent with these rules, any Commissioner may attend a meeting via 
remote communication to the extent permitted by the Washington Open Public Meetings Act, 
RCW 42.30 as it now exists or as it may be amended in the future. 

 
2. A Commissioner planning to attend via remote communication must 

provide notice to the Executive Director at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  The 
notice must advise of the Commissioner’s intent to attend via remote communication and the 
reason(s) why the Commissioner cannot attend the meeting in person. 
 

3. A Commissioner may not attend remotely unless satisfactory equipment is 
available at the physical location of the meeting. Satisfactory equipment means any telephone or 
other communications device equipped with a speaker junction capable of broadcasting the 
Commissioner’s voice attending clearly and sufficiently enough to be heard by those in 
attendance at the meeting, and allowing a Commissioner attending remotely to hear discussion at 
the meeting.  

4. During any meeting that a Commissioner is attending via remote 
communication, the Commission President or presiding officer shall state for the record that a 
particular Commissioner is attending via remote communication and the reasons for such 
attendance. 

 
5. Commissioners attending via remote communication may participate and 

vote during the meeting as if they were physically present at the meeting.  
 
6. Commissioners attending via remote communication shall comply with all 

rules and procedures as if they were physically present at the meeting.  
 
7. In the case of executive sessions, the Commission may permit 

participation from remote location(s) only when the Commission is confident in the security of 
such remote communications. 

J. Commissioner Absence and Excusal: 
 
Each Commissioner is responsible for requesting to be excused from regular or special 

meetings of the Port Commission, so as to avoid causing an inadvertent vacancy in the office 
according to RCW 53.12.140.  A Commissioner who is unable to attend a regular or special 
meeting will notify the Commission Coordinator no later than two (2) hours before the scheduled 
start of the meeting, if feasible to do so, to request excusal.  The Commission Coordinator will 
inform the President (or other officer presiding over the meeting) of the Commissioner’s excusal 
request prior to the meeting.  The President (or presiding officer) shall note the Commissioner’s 
request for excusal on the record for the minutes, and shall also state for that purpose whether the 
Commissioner’s absence is or is not excused.  Alternatively, during the Introduction of 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 7 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Commissioners portion of any meeting, as noted in Article V below, the Commission may take 
action on the Commissioner’s excusal request by motion as provided for in Article VI. 

 
The Commission shall automatically excuse absence of a Commissioner resulting from 

attendance to other Port business. 
 

ARTICLE V 
Order of Business 

 
A. The President of the Commission and the Executive Director determine the 

placement of items on the Agenda for the Commission.  The Commission shall 
vote to add agenda items to the list for a future work session or regular meeting 
and allow for the President and Executive Director to schedule the item as 
appropriate.   
 

B. Regular meetings will ordinarily follow the below prescribed format: 
 

1. Call to Order; 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance; 
 

3. Approval of Agenda, including request for Agenda additions or deletions; 
 

4. Tribal Honor Statement (to be decided);  
 

5. Special recognition (if needed); 
 
 

6. Executive Director’s Report; 
 

7. Litigation Report (at second regular Monday meeting of every month 
only); 
 

8. Public comment; 
 

a. Commission statement on nature of public comment; 
  b. General public comment period; 
   
 

9. Consent Calendar; 
 

a. Approval of minutes 
b. Warrants and vouchers; 

i. Any warrant or voucher exceeding $200,000 will be listed with 
the amount and the payee 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 8 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

 c. Other consent items; 
 

10. Pending Issues or Business 
  

10.11. Agenda action items; 
 

a. Staff presentations, if needed; 
b.  
c. Action by motion, vote, or resolution; 

 
11.12. Agenda action items – OTHER (matters brought for action without prior 

advisory); 
 
a. Staff presentation, if needed; 
b. Public comment; 
c 
d. Action by motion, vote, or resolution; 

 
12.13. Agenda advisory items; 

 
a. Staff presentations, if needed; 
b. Public comment (on all advisory items); 
c. Commission discussion; 

 
 

13.14. Continued public comment, if needed; 
 

14.15. Commissioner Reports; 
 

15.16. Other business (during this period, Commissioners may also raise new 
issue(s) and request to add such issue or issues to a future work 
session agenda or to send the issue or issues to the POCAC for 
review), and; 

 
18. Future meeting announcements; 

 
19. Adjourn. 

 
C. The Commissioners may agree to change the order of business set forth above at 

any time. 
 
D. All proceedings of the Commission will be by consensus, motion, or resolution 

recorded in minutes and books maintained for that purpose, which shall be publicly available. 
 
E. If any vote is unanimous then it shall be so recorded.  A record of the vote on any 

resolution or motion shall be made by a roll call vote of “yea” or “nay” in the minutes of the 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.25",  No bullets or numbering



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 9 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Commission. The proceedings of the Commission shall be carried on in such a manner and such 
dispatch as may be mutually agreeable to the Members of the Commission.  Robert’s Rules of 
Order shall be applied for the governing of any proceeding, and thereupon no resolution shall be 
considered or other action taken, until the same has been duly moved, seconded and carried. All 
resolutions passed by the vote of the Commissioners present at any meeting shall be deemed to 
have been moved, seconded and passed in due form. 

 

F. Any Commissioner or the Executive Director may make a point of order if 
necessary. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 
Guidelines for Public Comment at Meetings 

 
A.   General Procedures:  The following general procedures are applicable to all types 

of public comment at Commission meetings.  
 
1. Procedures for Providing Public Comment at In-Person Meetings:  The 

Port will provide a sign-in sheet for those who wish to provide general comment at regular in-
person Commission meetings.  The sign-in period for public comment will begin when the 
public meeting space opens and will close when the meeting is called to order.  Commenters 
must provide their real name on the sign-in sheet in order to be called, and may not wear 
costume masks that obscure the entirety of their face to address the Commission.  Commenters 
may wear face coverings as per public health requirements and/or recommendations. 

   
2. Procedures for Providing Public Comment at Virtual Meetings:  Those 

who wish to provide verbal public comment at a Virtual Meeting must sign up in advance with 
the Commission Coordinator by emailing CommissionCoordinator@portolympia.com or by 
submitting the form on the Port’s website (www.portolympia.com) by 12:00 noon on the date of 
the meeting.  The Commission President will call those who have signed up in advance by name 
to provide comment.  After all who have signed up are called, the Commission President may 
accept further public comment.  

 
3. Procedures for Providing Written Comment (In-Person and Virtual 

Meetings).  Members of the public may also provide the Commission with written comment by 
sending the written comments via email to the Commission Coordinator or by using the form on 
the Port’s website (www.portolympia.com) from the time and date the agenda is published to the 
public through 12:00 noon the day of the meeting.  The Commission Coordinator will compile 
the public comments received by the above-reference deadline and forward the compiled public 
comments to the Commission prior to the related meeting.  

 
4. Use of Electronic Media During Public Comment:  Commenters may use 

electronic media (such as presentations or video) to present information to the Commissioners 

mailto:CommissionCoordinator@portolympia.com
http://www.portolympia.com/
http://www.portolympia.com/


 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 10 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

during the public comment period at regular Commission meetings, subject to the following 
limitations: 
 

a. Electronic media to be used during public comment must be 
related to Port business. 

 
b. Commenters must abide by the three (3) minute time limit when 

using electronic media, and should select and edit presentations accordingly.  Commenters may 
not yield some or all of their allotted three (3) minutes so as to result in a longer presentation 
time for another commenter. 
 

c. In order to protect the integrity of Port information systems, 
electronic media or a link to internet-based information must be e-mailed to the Commission 
Coordinator at CommissionCoordinator@portolympia.com no later than noon on the day of the 
Commission meeting where the electronic media is to be used.  To be accepted for presentation, 
email submissions must include (i) the name of the individual who will be providing public 
comment; (ii) the author of the electronic media being submitted; and (iii) a brief description of 
the content of the electronic media. 
 

d. Commenters may not use jump drives, external drives, or other 
direct connection to Port information systems to present electronic media to the Commission 
during public comment.  Links to internet-based information must be accessible using the Port’s 
web browser.  The Port will not be responsible for resolving compatibility issues related to 
electronic media submitted for public comment. 
   

e. The Commission Coordinator will review all timely submitted 
electronic media prior to the Commission meeting to determine that the content is functional and 
viewable.  Prior to the meeting, the Commission Coordinator will provide the President with a 
report identifying the electronic media submittals received, if any.  The report will include the 
commenter’s name, the author of the electronic media, and the brief description of content 
provided with the submittal. 

 
f. The President will enforce the above guidelines and shall be 

allowed to preclude commenters from using electronic media that fails to comply with submittal 
guidelines, guidelines for public comment, or otherwise contains information unrelated to Port 
business.   

 
5. Limitations on Use of Public Comment for Campaigning or Advertising:  

No person may use public comment periods for the purpose of campaigning or promoting a 
campaign, whether for an election or ballot proposition.  In addition, no person may use public 
comment periods for the purpose of commercial advertising.  These limitations do not prevent or 
preclude any person addressing the Commission from expressing views or opinions over matters 
related to the Port’s business or within the Commission’s jurisdiction.  In addition, these 
limitations do not prohibit individuals or organizations from promoting public events. 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 11 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

  
5.. Comments to be Directed to Commission: Comments should be directed 

to the Commission as a whole and should not include comments about individual Port staff or 
members of the public.  []. 

 
6.. Courtesy:  All speakers (members of the public, Port staff, and 

Commissioners) shall be courteous in language and demeanor and shall confine remarks to those 
facts that are germane and relevant to the question or issue under discussion. 
 

B.   Procedures for General Public Comment:  The Commission will allow general 
public comment on issues related to Port business at regular Commission meetings, subject to the 
following procedures: 

 
1. The general public comment period held at the beginning of the meeting 

will be limited to 30 minutes; 
 

2. Each commenter will be allowed three (3) minutes for individual 
comment; and commenters may not yield some or all of the allotted three (3) minutes so as to 
result in a longer comment period for another commenter.  If a commenter is interrupted during 
the allotted three (3) minutes, the commenter shall be allowed to continue speaking beyond the 
three (3) minute timer for a period equivalent to the interruption; 

 
3. If there are more than ten (10) commenters who wish to make public 

comments during the general public comment period, then the Commission reserves the right to 
defer such additional general public comment to proceed with meeting business, and instead hold 
an additional general public comment period prior to the conclusion of the meeting; 

 
4. The subject of public comments not directed to a specific agenda item or 

items must be related to Port business, and; 
 

5. The President will enforce these requirements and shall be allowed to 
curtail any individual public comment that exceeds allotted time, is beyond the reasonable scope 
of Port business, is overly repetitive or lengthy, or includes disruptive behavior as defined in 
Section VI-D below. 

 
C. Procedures for Public Comment on Advisory and Action-Other Items:  The Commission 
shall also provide separate public comment periods during the meeting for advisory and action-
OTHER items appearing on the meeting agenda.  These comment periods shall be subject to the 
general procedures set forth above as well as the following: 
 

1. Each commenter shall be allowed three (3) minutes for individual comments; and 
commenters may not yield some or all of the allotted three (3) minutes so as to result in a 
longer comment period for another commenter; and 

 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 12 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

2.  The President shall be allowed to curtail any individual public comment that exceeds 
allotted time, is beyond the scope of the subject agenda item, is overly repetitive or 
lengthy, or includes disruptive behavior as defined in Section VI-D below. 

 
D. Disruptive Behavior: Disruptive behavior includes, but is not limited to: speaking 

beyond the allocated time limit; preventing members of the public from hearing or viewing the 
discussion of the Commission, whether by standing or holding a banner or sign in a manner that 
obstructs view of or passage through the meeting room; speaking in a volume louder than low, 
conversational tone when not recognized by the President for public comment; and any 
threatening or harassing comments or behavior, whether directed at any or all Commissioners, 
Port of Olympia staff, or other members of the public.    

 
E. Curtailing Public Comment and Disruptive Behavior:  The President has 

discretion to curtail public comment and Disruptive Behavior which violates these guidelines.  
The President will first request that the individual follow these guidelines.  If an individual fails 
to comply with the President’s request, the President may deem the individual out of order and 
direct that the individual be removed from the Commission meeting.  If the individual is 
engaging in Disruptive Behavior that is threatening or harassing, the President may direct the 
individual be removed from the Commission meeting regardless of whether the threatening or 
harassing behavior occurs during the public comment portion of the Commission meeting.  If the 
individual presents a threat to those present at the meeting, the President may request assistance 
from law enforcement or security in removing the individual.   

 
F. Security:  In order to promote the safety and efficiency of Commission meetings, 

the President may request the presence of additional security for meetings expected to address 
sensitive and/or controversial subjects. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Motions 

 
A. Except as otherwise required by these Rules, the Commission shall transact its 

business by motion, which may be made by any Commissioner in attendance. 
 

B. Voting on all motions shall be “yea” or “nay.” Robert’s Rules of Order shall be 
applied for the governing of any proceeding, and thereupon no motion shall be 
considered or other action taken, until the same has been duly moved, seconded and 
carried.  All motions passed by the vote of the Commissioners present at any meeting 
shall be deemed to have been moved, seconded and passed in due form. 

  
C. Concurrence of two (2) Commissioners shall be necessary and shall be sufficient for 

the passage of any motion. 
 
D. Commissioners shall vote by motion to direct the Executive Director’s work. 
 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 13 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

E.  Commissioners shall vote on all motions unless required to abstain due to an 
actual or apparent conflict of interest under RCW Chapter 42.52 and Port of Olympia 
Commission Resolution 2021-03, which sets ethical standards for Port Commissioners.   

 
ARTICLE VIII 

Resolutions 
 
 A.  All matters, which in the judgment of the Commission, are of a legislative 
character shall be embodied in the form of resolutions.  Text of the proposed resolutions shall be 
provided prior to the public meeting as set forth in these Rules. 
 

B.  Voting on all resolutions shall be “yea” or “nay.” Robert’s Rules of Order shall be 
applied for the governing of any proceeding, and thereupon no resolution shall be considered or 
other action taken, until the same has been duly moved, seconded and carried.  All resolutions 
passed by the vote of the Commissioners present at any meeting shall be deemed to have been 
moved, seconded and passed in due form. 
 

C.  Resolutions shall be numbered consecutively by the year in which they are 
enacted and the original copy of each resolution shall be duly authenticated in open session by 
the signatures of Commissioners present, which shall serve to attest to a majority of the 
Commission members voting in favor of the Resolution.  Adopted resolutions shall be filed, 
published on the Port’s website, and recorded in minutes and a book or books kept for such 
purposes, which shall be public records. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

Minutes 
 

A. Port staff will prepare draft action minutes of each meeting and distribute them to 
Commissioners for their review as to accuracy of actions taken.  The goal will be to provide 
concise and complete minutes for Commission review no later than thirty (30) days after the 
subject meeting.  The Minutes must contain a record of motions, agenda and agenda changes, 
participants, and actions taken.  The minutes may include a brief summary of each topic’s staff 
presentation and discussion. 

 
F. The Commission Coordinator will send the draft minutes to Commissioners as 

soon as possible following each meeting, and will include a date for Commissioners to return 
corrections.  Commissioners will individually send any corrections back to the Commission 
Coordinator.  If a substantive correction is offered to the draft minutes, the Commissioner 
offering the correction will include a reference to the place in the Commission video timeline 
from where the correction originates.  The Commission Coordinator will prepare a final draft 
incorporating corrections.  The Executive Director will complete a final review of the draft.  
 

G. In most cases, minutes will be presented for approval at the next regular business 
meeting.  Approval of the minutes will be in included in the Consent Agenda. 

 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 14 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

H. Written public comments submitted directly to Commissioners or to the 
Commission Coordinator pursuant to Article VI.A.3 will not be appended to or included in the 
minutes.  The minutes will reflect the names of commenters only.  
 

 
I.  When the Commission has approved the minutes of a meeting, the minutes as 

approved shall represent the final and considered determination of the Commission as to the 
motions and actions set forth therein.              

                                                                   
 

ARTICLE X 
Publication of Meeting Materials 

 
A. Agendas, reports, cover memos, and any supporting materials, will ordinarily be 

posted on the Port’s website no later than 3:00 p.m. two (2) business days before a meeting, 
which will be the preceding Thursday before a regular Monday business meeting or work 
session.  Agendas and materials for special meetings of the Commission called pursuant to Art. 
IV(C) of this Resolution will be posted no later than 3:00 pm two (2)  business days before a 
meeting as a rule; however, consistent with the Open Public Meetings Act, in no event will 
agendas for special meetings be posted later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 
Meeting materials posted on the Port’s website may be modified at any time subsequent 

to posting and prior to the meeting based upon changes to the agenda or to reflect updates to 
posted materials. 

 
It is the responsibility of Staff to prepare materials for presentations including 

PowerPoint slides, maps, or other materials for presentation to the Commission.  Commissioners 
will not provide supplementary materials to be considered for inclusion in the meeting materials 
packet.  Exception to this rule is when a Commissioner has information to share regarding a 
committee they serve on behalf of the Port. For that exception, the Commissioner must submit 
the proposed materials to the Commission Coordinator for inclusion by no later than 3:00 pm the 
preceding Thursday before a Monday meeting.   

 
B. Members of the public may request to be included on a voluntary e-mail list for 

distribution of Commission agenda and meeting materials.  The Port will e-mail the agenda and a 
link to the meeting materials to those on this voluntary e-mail list on the same day the materials 
are posted on the Port’s website. 

 
C. The Port will provide a hard copy of the agenda and/or meeting materials, if 

requested, by visiting the Port’s administrative office during the Port’s regular business office 
hours. 
 

D. Meeting videos supplement efficient written meeting minutes.  Video recordings 
for regular Port meetings held on or after February 18, 2016, will be published and retained on 
the Port’s website, to be readily and available for viewing.  This is subject to system capacity and 



 
Port of Olympia Commission  Page | 15 
Resolution 2022-XX06 
   

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

budget authorization by the Commission. Video recordings will be maintained and archived at 
the Washington State Archives pursuant to applicable state records retention schedules. 

 
ARTICLE XI 

Amendment of Rules 
 
These Rules may be amended by Resolution. 

 
ADOPTED by a majority of the members of the Port Commission of the Port of 

Olympia, a majority being present and voting on this Resolution at a regular Commission 
meeting on ____________, July 25, as attested to by the signatures below of the Commissioners 
this 25__th day of ____________.July. 
 
 PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION 
 
 By:       
 Bob Iyall, President 
  
 By:       
 Amy Evans, Vice-President 
 
 By:_________________________________ 
 Joe Downing, Secretary 



   

 
 COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 

BRIEFING DATE/TIME:  September 12, 2021  

DEPARTMENT: Executive 

STAFF CONTACT/TITLE: 
Sam Gibboney 
Telephone: 360.528.8001 
Email:Samg@portolympia.com 

TOPIC: Redistricting Process Update 

PURPOSE: 
Check all that apply 

       Information only 
       Decision needed 
       Follow up from previous briefing 

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW: 

At the July 25, 2022 Commission meeting, the Commission approved Resolution 2022-07 to submit to 
the voters of Thurston County a ballot proposition to increase the number of Port Commissions from 
three to five with each assigned to five newly drawn and separate districts.  The Commission also 
approved a Memorandum of Understanding with Thurston County, which sets into motion 
collaborative efforts to form the new Commissioner districts.  
 
The ballot proposition will appear at the general election on November 8, 2022 election.  If the ballot 
proposition receives majority voter approval, the two new Commissioner positions would be filled at 
the 2023 general election.   
 
Consistent with RCW 52.12.130, if voters approve the increase in Commission positions at the 
November 8, 2022 election, the five new districts must be formed by January 1, 2023. Because of the 
short time frame between November 8 and January 1, the redistricting effort has begun. Pursuant to 
Joint Resolution 2021-11 between Thurston County and the Port, a committee consisting of the 
County Commission Chair, the Port Commission Chair, and the County Auditor (serving as a non-
voting member) has convened to consider the formation of the five new districts. These meetings are 
open to the public.  
 
A draft timeline was developed by the County Manager and Port Executive Director and was 
presented to the Port Commission and the Redistricting Committee.  The timeline is subject to change 
and is attached for reference.   
 
The Commission President will provide an update regarding the redistricting process and the 
Commission will discuss.  
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

• Resolution No. 2022-07 regarding the ballot proposition to increase the number of Commissioners 
from three to five 

• Memorandum of Understanding between Thurston County and the Port of Olympia regarding the 



   

implementation of Joint Resolution No. 2021-11 drafting of new commissioner districts. 
• Joint Resolution No. 2021-11 to collaborate on respective ballot measures  
• Redistricting Committee objectives & timeline 

 

SUMMARY & FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Staff has estimated one-time costs at $381,000. Ongoing annual costs were estimated at $145,000 and 
election costs were estimated at $200,000 per election cycle.  
 

AFFECTED PARTIES: 

Citizens of Thurston County 
Port of Olympia Commission 
Thurston County Board of County Commissioners 
Thurston County Auditor 

 









 

Page 1 of 2 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THURSTON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS AND THE PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION 
 

 
 This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between the Thurston 
County and the Port of Olympia (hereinafter the “Parties”) for purpose of Implementing Joint 
Resolution No. 2021-11 between the parties regarding drafting proposed new districts if the 
proposed ballot measures increasing the respective parties’ Commission or Board of 
Commissioners from three to five are approved by the voters. 
 

WHEREAS, Thurston  County has reached a population of over 300,000 and less than 
400,000 and pursuant to RCW 36.32.   has the discretionary authority to bring a ballot measure 
before the voters to increase the number of commissioners from three to five; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Thurston County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) passed Resolution No. 

2022-07 to place a ballot measure before the  voters in the November 2, 2022 General Election 
for approval to increase the Board of County Commissioners from three to five and create five 
new county commissioner districts; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Olympia Commissioners (Port Commission) is also expected to pass 

a Resolution putting a ballot measure before the voters in the November 2, 2022 Election for 
approval to increase the Port of Olympia Commissioners from three to five and create five new 
Port commissioner districts; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port Commission and the BOCC adopted Joint Resolution 2021-11, 

attached and incorporated herein by reference, to collaborate on drawing new boundaries, 
creating a three-member redistricting committee and sharing costs of these efforts in anticipation 
of both ballot measures being approved by the voters. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made herein and the mutual 

benefits received hereunder, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 
The Parties approve and accept this MOU for the purpose of  implementing the Parties’ 

agreement set forth in Joint resolution No 2021-11 to collaborate on efforts to draw new boundaries, and 
agree to form a three-member Redistricting Committee with the following members:  Chair of the County 
Commission; President of the Port Commission, and the County Auditor,  with the County Auditor  
serving as a non-voting member providing technical guidance.   

 
A.  The Parties and  the Redistricting Committee  shall achieve the following deadlines in 

2022: 

o August 3rd through September 29th  County staff from the Informational 
Technology Department and Elections Division,  and the Redistricting Committee 
shall develop a proposal to create five districts for the election of commissioners;  



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

o September 30th  The Redistricting  Committee shall  submit the final draft 
redistricting plan of the  proposed five  districts to the County and the Port;    

o Weeks of October 10th and October 17th Redistricting  Committee shall schedule 
joint work sessions between the parties   to review the   final draft of the proposed 
five districts. 

o November 4th Final draft agreement of the boundaries are approved by the Parties;  
o November 15th The Parties shall set a joint Public Hearing to take place on 

November 29 to take comment on the final approved draft of the five new districts.  
o November 29th The parties will hold individual Public Hearings on the final draft 

and adopt final new 5 member districts on December 12 (Port Commission) and 
December 13 (BoCC);  

o December 12th Port Commission Approval of the final new 5 member districts;  
o December 13th BoCC Approval  final new 5 member districts; 
o December 20 Parties submit approved boundaries to County Auditor 

B.  The County will take the lead in providing technical support to the redistricting 
committee via our GEODATA staff. 
 
o The Port agrees to cover 50% of the actual costs up to an amount not to exceed 

Fifteen Thousand dollars ($15,000.) 
o Approximate cost of this effort is Thirty Thousand dollars ($30,000.) 

 
C.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 

the other provisions of this agreement which can be given effect without the invalid 
provisions.  If such remainder conforms to the requirements of applicable law and the 
fundamental purpose of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement are declared 
severable. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this MOU to be executed by the 
date and signature herein under affixed.  The persons signing this MOU on behalf of the Parties 
represent that each has authority to execute this MOU on behalf of the Party entering into this 
MOU. 
 
Thurston County  
 
_________________________________  _____________________ 
Name       Date 
 
 
 
Port of Olympia Commission 
 
_________________________________  _____________________ 
Charles “Bob” Iyall, President    Date 
 
 
 

 



Redistricting Committee Objectives and Timelines  
(August 18, 2022) 

Board of County Commissioners’ Office  
Objectives 
o Achieve equal population number by district, about 60,000 per district 
o Maintain current Commissioners in their elected districts 
o Follow Precinct lines, avoiding splitting precincts 
o Compact and contagious as possible 
o Maintain Communities of mutual interest 
o No Gerrymandering       

Timelines   
 
o August 12th through September 29th   

County staff from the Informational Technology Department and Elections Division, and the 
Redistricting Committee shall develop a proposal to create five districts for the election of 
commissioners;  

o September 30th   
The Redistricting Committee shall submit the final draft redistricting plan of the proposed five 
districts to the County and the Port;    

o Weeks of October 10th and October 17th 
Redistricting Committee shall schedule joint work sessions between the parties   to review the final 
draft of the proposed five districts. 

o November 4th Final draft agreement of the boundaries are approved by the respective Legislative 
Authorities.  

o November 15th  
The Parties shall set a separate public hearing to take place on November 29 to take comment on 
the final approved draft of the five new districts.  

o November 21st  Publish the proposed district boundaries map for public review leading to the public 
hearing. 

o November 29th The parties will hold separate Public Hearings on the final draft 
o December 2nd  

Redistricting Committee meets to consider public comments – if no modifications then move to 
approval.  

o December 12th Port Commission Approval of the final new 5 member districts;  
o December 13th BoCC Approval final new 5 member districts; 
o December 20th  Parties submit approved boundaries to County Auditor 

 
OR IF MODIFICATIONS ARE MADE TO THE DRAFT PLAN 

o December 9th Revised final plan is submitted to the County and the Port Commissions 
o December 13th Joint Work Session to review revised draft  
o December 15th   

Port Commission and BOCC Approval of the final new 5 member districts – Separate Special 
Meetings;  

o December 19th Parties submit approved boundaries to County Auditor 
 



 

JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 2021—11 
 

A JOINT RESOLUTION BETWEEN THE PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION AND THE 
THURSTON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ESTABLISHING MUTUAL 

INTENT TO COLLABORATE ON RESPECTIVE BALLOT MEASURES TO INCREASE THE 
NUMBER OF COMMISSIONERS AND REDRAW DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Commission intends to submit a ballot proposition asking qualified 

voters whether the number of Port Commissioners should be increased from the current 
three commissioners to five commissioners at the next district general election to be held in 
November 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Olympia Commission and the Thurston County Board of 

Commissioners (BOCC) held a joint meeting on July 21, 2021, and jointly agreed to collaborate 
and share in efforts to put forth ballot measures to increase the number of commissioners 
representing each agency, provided that Thurston County surpasses 300,000 residents after 
the completion of the 2021 census cycle; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Olympia Commission and the BOCC expressed that if 

simultaneous ballot measures are put forth, inter-agency collaboration can provide greater 
clarity to voters, at lower cost to taxpayers; and  

 
WHEREAS; the Port of Olympia Commission and the BOCC agreed to establish a 

mechanism for collaboration, and to coordinate with the Thurston County Auditor to the fullest 
extent possible to achieve these common goals as well as align district boundaries and share 
costs associated with redrawing district boundaries; and  

 
WHEREAS, Thurston County census data was returned to Thurston County in or 

around September 30, 2021, and it is anticipated that the population of Thurston County will 
be determined to be at least 300,000 residents by May 2, 2022 which is the deadline for 
adopting precinct boundary changes prior to the general election; and 

 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Washington, RCW 53.12.115, authorize the Port of 

Olympia Commission to resolve that a ballot proposition may be submitted to the qualified 
voters of the Port District to determine whether there should be an increase in the number of 
Port Commissioners from three commissioners to five commissioners; and  

 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Washington, RCW 36.32.0552 authorizes the 

Thurston County Board of Commissioners, of a noncharter county with a population of three 
hundred thousand or more, to place a ballot proposition before the voters at a general 
election; and 

 
 



 

WHEREAS, a majority of the members of the Port of Olympia Commission, a majority 
being present and voting on this Resolution at a regular Commission meeting on November 8, 
2021, as attested to by the signatures below; and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the members of the Board of County Commissioners, a majority 
being present and voting on this Resolution at a regular Commission meeting on November ---, 
2021, as attested to by the signatures below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Thurston County Board of County Commissioners, and the Port 
of Olympia Commission resolves as follows: 

 
Section 1. If Thurston County is determined to have at least 300,000 residents by 

May 2, 2022, then the Port Commission and the Thurston County Commission will collaborate 
on efforts to draw new boundaries, and agree to form a three-member redistricting committee 
with the following members:  Chair of the County Commission; Chair of the Port Commission, 
and the County Auditor.  The County Auditor would serve as a non-voting member providing 
technical guidance.   

 
 

ADOPTED:  

DATE:  December 13, 2021    DATE: __________________ 

  

PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSIONERS  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
 
 

 



BUCODA

LACEY

OLYMPIA

RAINIER

TENINO

TUMWATER

YELM

044
(POP
700)

131
(POP 578)

160
(POP 944)

191
(POP 1204)

066
(POP 652)

101
(POP 728)

134
(POP 674)

102
(POP
818)

176
(POP 1003)

106
(POP 1074)

094
(POP 919)

105
(POP 1108)

039
(POP 1128)172

(POP 662)

133
(POP 797)

195
(POP 679)

104
(POP 569)

347
(POP 1248)132

(POP 687)

103
(POP 510)

095
(POP 733)

183
(POP
752)

065
(POP 1008)

175
(POP 978)

135
(POP
727)

348
(POP 1590)

096
(POP 795)

129
(POP 851)

343
(POP 2097)

063
(POP 643) 324

(POP 2045)

047
(POP 890)

139
(POP 1268)

174
(POP 718)

136
(POP 1566)

107
(POP 790)259

(POP
877)

201
(POP 1146)

140
(POP 721)

035
(POP 410) 224

(POP 772) 221
(POP 964) 112

(POP 1141)

057
(POP 605)

246
(POP 1293)

253
(POP
948)

189
(POP 1136)

059
(POP 1386)

237
(POP 1773)

223
(POP 1089)

213
(POP 774) 204

(POP 883)

206
(POP 1279)

111
(POP 1341)

249
(POP 989)

217
(POP 679)

301
(POP 1082)

245
(POP 1181)

254
(POP
496)

260
(POP 1563)

257
(POP
940) 091

(POP 1227)

207
(POP 1653) 244

(POP 482)
119

(POP 2123)226
(POP 643)

218
(POP 897)

220
(POP 495)

169
(POP 1514)

212
(POP 2019)

092
(POP 1755)

228
(POP
1581)

141
(POP 673)

258
(POP
1645)

248
(POP 1825)215

(POP 1080)

333
(POP 745)250

(POP 1097)
205

(POP
1367)

309
(POP
1032)

118
(POP 1570)

256
(POP
1291)

230
(POP
843)

202
(POP 2425) 033

(POP
2521)

214
(POP 545)

210
(POP
692)

308
(POP 1280)

219
(POP 1437)

229
(POP 749)

304
(POP 1046)247

(POP 1239)

319
(POP
940)

227
(POP 774)

251
(POP
302)

306
(POP
645)

115
(POP
1584)

310
(POP
651)

337
(POP
338)232

(POP 1431)
211

(POP
644) 313

(POP
616) 168

(POP 899)
241

(POP 723) 316
(POP
395)

407
(POP 672)

239
(POP
679)

328
(POP
636)240

(POP
477)

311
(POP
510)

320
(POP
536)216

(POP 171)

303
(POP
1083)

408
(POP
1321)

321
(POP 592)

208
(POP
623)

209
(POP 1621)

307
(POP
1212)

335
(POP 907)

415
(POP 1361)

401
(POP
1718)

305
(POP
520)

116
(POP 733)

242
(POP 455)

117
(POP 180)427

(POP
1283)

173
(POP 522)

314
(POP
672)

402
(POP 766) 231

(POP 726)

403
(POP 1598)

341
(POP
764)

412
(POP 813)

235
(POP 1307)

190
(POP 545)

317
(POP 1256)

067
(POP 4)

164
(POP 924)

340
(POP
1989)

424
(POP 735)

331
(POP 1878)

090
(POP 1485)

069
(POP 47) 069

(POP
47)

186
(POP 1589)

163
(POP
1182)

070
(POP
65)

327
(POP 1325)

161
(POP 482)

197
(POP 1488)

193
(POP 1248)

339
(POP 1709)

329
(POP
1984)

413
(POP 453)

100
(POP
1143)

406
(POP 1285)

404
(POP
1280)

023
(POP 820)

120
(POP 1068)

187
(POP 1646)

330
(POP
1773) 078

(POP 630)

099
(POP 1324)

144
(POP 1114)

121
(POP
698)

414
(POP 578)

431
(POP 1521)

185
(POP 706)

097
(POP 253)

322
(POP 623)

357
(POP 1215) 332

(POP 1766)

192
(POP 1281)

405
(POP 790)

409
(POP
914)

345
(POP 963)

428
(POP 1759)

051
(POP 456)

086
(POP 790)

122
(POP 1441)

349
(POP 488)

336
(POP 1355)

083
(POP 246) 022

(POP 378)

432
(POP
1276)

145
(POP 802)

074
(POP 1606)

124
(POP 1004)

184
(POP 393)

089
(POP 1489)

146
(POP 1484)

036
(POP 941)

050
(POP 674)

126
(POP 1063)

126
(POP 1063)

704
(POP 2047)

151
(POP 1640)

701
(POP 2200)

703
(POP
2791)

703
(POP
2791)

081
(POP 436)

180
(POP 791)

062
(POP 1844)

171
(POP 752)

053
(POP 1230)

702
(POP
1467)

125
(POP 1759)

147
(POP 1056)

179
(POP 1380)

155
(POP 596)

049
(POP 875)

128
(POP 597)

045
(POP 846)

032
(POP 1348)

199
(POP 1770)

601
(POP 1385)

602
(POP 984)

060
(POP 1494)

127
(POP 568)

055
(POP 947) 501

(POP 958)

130
(POP 548)

025
(POP 646)

031
(POP 362)

046
(POP 1492)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

148
(POP 729)

158
(POP 973)

153
(POP 1783)

170
(POP 1302)

027
(POP 1647)

048
(POP 1029)

157
(POP 200)

052
(POP 1269)

156
(POP 320)

077
(POP 270)

801
(POP 592)

150
(POP 847)

149
(POP 1855)

028
(POP 233)

054
(POP 1166)

165
(POP 1763)

429
(POP 8)

203
(POP 1179)

143
(POP 3)

430
(POP 1099)

030
(POP 1303)

261
(POP
12)

351
(POP 619)

705
(POP
2112)

352
(POP
24)

356
(POP 1104)

196
(POP 1740)

410
(POP
2053)

194
(POP 1461)

109
(POP
672)

076
(POP
916)

411
(POP
1270)

302
(POP 1124)

075
(POP 273)

346
(POP 1662)

024
(POP
795)

088
(POP 586)

043
(POP 1142)

162
(POP 1038)

084
(POP 334)

342
(POP 1176)

110
(POP
1010)

080
(POP
37)

315
(POP
1689)

098
(POP 1231)

433
(POP 774)

026
(POP 762)

198
(POP 1430)

354
(POP 1266)

355
(POP
1234)

082
(POP
195)

113
(POP 322)

113
(POP
322)

093
(POP 728)

020
(POP 1436)

166
(POP 136)

019
(POP 592)

358
(POP 1391)

021
(POP 450)

154
(POP 1057)

0 5

Miles

Thurston County
Five Com m issioner Distric ts

Five Commissioner Districts
District 159,096 District 259,310 District 359,004 District 458,773 District 558,610

N

The inform a tion inc lud ed  on this m a p ha s b een c om piled  b y Thurston County sta ff from  a  va riety
of sourc es a nd  is sub jec t to c ha nge without notic e. Ad d itiona l elem ents m a y b e present in rea lity
tha t a re not represented  on the m a p. O rtho-photos a nd  other d a ta  m a y not a lign. The
bound a ries d epic ted  b y these d a ta sets a re a pproxim a te. This d oc um ent is not intend ed  for use
a s a  survey prod uc t.
ALL DATA IS EXPRESSLY PRO VIDED ‘AS IS’ AND ‘WITH ALL FAULTS’. Thurston County
m a kes no representa tions or wa rra nties, express or im plied , a s to a c c ura c y, com pleteness,
tim eliness, or rights to the use of suc h inform a tion. In no event sha ll Thurston County b e lia b le
for d irec t, ind irec t, inc id enta l, consequentia l, spec ia l, or tort d a m a ges of a ny kind , inc lud ing, but
not lim ited  to, lost revenues or lost profits, rea l or a ntic ipa ted , resulting from  the use, m isuse or
relia nc e of the inform a tion conta ined  on this m a p. If a ny portion of this m a p or d isc la im er is
m issing or a ltered , Thurston County rem oves itself from  a ll responsib ility from  the m a p a nd  the
d a ta  c onta ined  within. The burd en for d eterm ining fitness for use lies entirely with the user a nd
the user is solely responsib le for und ersta nd ing the a c c ura c y lim ita tion of the inform a tion
conta ined  in this m a p.

Crea ted  b y SLS on 8/29/2022

019, FO UR CO RNERS SO UTH, 592
020, GRAND MO UND WEST, 1436
021, VIO LET PRAIRIE SO UTH, 450
022, EATO N CREEK NO RTH, 378
023, PATTISO N EAST, 820
024, KINWO O D EAST, 795
025, HENNESS NO RTH, 646
026, HARTWO O D SO UTH, 762
027, CLEAR LAKE SO UTH, 1647
028, CO UGAR MO UNTAIN, 233
030, CLEAR LAKE NO RTH, 1303
031, LACKAMAS, 362
032, MO RRIS, 1348
033, EVERGREEN BALLRO O M, 2521
035, KAISER, 410
036, RICH, 941
039, JO NES BEACH, 1128
043, UNIVERSITY, 1142
044, STEAMBO AT ISLAND, 700
045, RO CKY PRAIRIE, 846
046, LAWRENCE LAKE, 1492
047, WO O DARD CREEK, 890
048, MICHIGAN HILL, 1029
049, SCO TT LAKE SO UTH, 875
050, SALMO N CREEK, 674
051, SPURGEO N CRK, 456
052, JAMES, 1269
053, VAIL, 1230
054, RO CHESTER 5, 1166
055, RO CHESTER 4, 947
057, MEDICINE CREEK, 605
058, SKO KO MISH, 1774
059, PLEASANT HILL, 1386
060, SMITH PRAIRIE, 1494
062, BLACK RIVER, 1844
063, AMES, 643
065, LUHR BEACH, 1008
066, FISHTRAP, 652
067, QUINCE, 4
069, SIMMO NS 3, 47
070, SIMMO NS 4, 65
074, PINES, 1606

075, LO NG LAKE, 273
076, HAWK ACRES, 916
077, ZENKNER VALLEY, 270
078, TRI LAKES, 630
080, TO LMIE, 37
081, MILITARY, 436
082, GLEN TERRA, 195
083, PRINE, 246
084, GLENWO O D, 334
086, GREENRIDGE, 790
088, WO O DLAND, 586
089, TILLEY, 1489
090, SWEET BRIAR, 1485
091, DEERBRUSH, 1227
092, MUSHRO O M CO RNER, 1755
093, TRAILBLAZER, 728
094, FRYE CO VE, 919
095, O YSTER BAY, 733
096, SUMMIT LAKE, 795
097, DELRIDGE, 253
098, MARVIN, 1231
099, ALPINE, 1324
100, HEWITT LAKE, 1143
101, ZANGLE, 728
102, BO STO N HARBO R, 818
103, GULL HARBO R, 510
104, FRIENDLY GRO VE, 569
105, SO UTH BAY, 1108
106, PUGET, 1074
107, BIGELO W, 790
109, PLEASANT GLADE, 672
110, MO NTGO MERY, 1010
111, NISQUALLY, 1341
112, RO O SEVELT, 1141
113, KINWO O D WEST, 322
115, FO REST, 1584
116, ST CLAIR, 733
117, HICKS, 180
118, FLEETWO O D, 1570
119, LYDIA HAWK, 2123
120, HAYS, 1068
121, INDIAN SUMMER, 698

122, CHAMBERS, 1441
124, FRISTO E, 1004
125, DESCHUTES, 1759
126, LO NGMIRE, 1063
127, RUTH PRAIRIE, 568
128, WEIR PRAIRIE, 597
129, CO LLEGE, 851
130, BALD HILLS, 548
131, HUNTER PO INT, 578
132, GRIFFIN, 687
133, SCHNEIDERS PRAIRIE, 797
134, CO O PER PO INT, 674
135, BUTLER CO VE, 727
136, BRO ADWAY, 1566
139, PLAINVIEW, 1268
140, MUD BAY, 721
141, MCLANE, 673
143, BUSH PRAIRIE, 3
144, BLACK LAKE, 1114
145, DELPHI, 802
146, SO UTH UNIO N, 1484
147, PLUMB, 1056
148, SCATTER CREEK, 729
149, MCINTO SH, 1855
150, VIO LET PRAIRIE NO RTH, 847
151, LITTLERO CK, 1640
153, RO CHESTER 1, 1783
154, RO CHESTER 2, 1057
155, SCO TT LAKE NO RTH, 596
156, GRAND MO UND EAST, 320
157, GIBSO N VALLEY, 200
158, SKO O KUMCHUCK, 973
160, JO HNSO N PO INT, 944
161, WARDS, 482
162, THO MPSO N, 1038
163, SMITH LAKE, 1182
164, EVERGREEN SHO RES, 924
165, SUNWO O D LAKES, 1763
166, EATO N CREEK SO UTH, 136
168, HO LMES, 899
169, MCALLISTER CREEK, 1514
170, RO CHESTER 3, 1302

171, WADDELL CREEK, 752
172, TYKLE CO VE, 662
173, CAMELO T, 522
174, FRENCH, 718
175, SUNSET BEACH, 978
176, HENDERSO N, 1003
178, PATTISO N WEST, 423
179, FO UR CO RNERS NO RTH, 1380
180, STEDMAN, 791
183, BEACH CREST, 752
184, SCHELLER, 393
185, FAIR O AKS, 706
186, WILDERNESS, 1589
187, MULLEN, 1646
189, SLEATER KINNEY, 1136
190, LAKESIDE, 545
191, GALLAGHER CO VE, 1204
192, EAST O LYMPIA, 1281
193, BERRY VALLEY, 1248
194, HARTWO O D NO RTH, 1461
195, LIBBY, 679
196, MEADO WS, 1740
197, SUMMERSET, 1488
198, HENNESS SO UTH, 1430
199, BEAVER CRK, 1770
201, O LYMPIA 1, 1146
202, O LYMPIA 2, 2425
203, O LYMPIA 3, 1179
204, O LYMPIA 4, 883
205, O LYMPIA 5, 1367
206, O LYMPIA 6, 1279
207, O LYMPIA 7, 1653
208, O LYMPIA 8, 623
209, O LYMPIA 9, 1621
210, O LYMPIA 10, 692
211, O LYMPIA 11, 644
212, O LYMPIA 12, 2019
213, O LYMPIA 13, 774
214, O LYMPIA 14, 545
215, O LYMPIA 15, 1080
216, O LYMPIA 16, 171
217, O LYMPIA 17, 679

218, O LYMPIA 18, 897
219, O LYMPIA 19, 1437
220, O LYMPIA 20, 495
221, O LYMPIA 21, 964
223, O LYMPIA 23, 1089
224, O LYMPIA 24, 772
225, O LYMPIA 25, 1195
226, O LYMPIA 26, 643
227, O LYMPIA 27, 774
228, O LYMPIA 28, 1581
229, O LYMPIA 29, 749
230, O LYMPIA 30, 843
231, O LYMPIA 31, 726
232, O LYMPIA 32, 1431
235, O LYMPIA 35, 1307
237, O LYMPIA 37, 1773
239, O LYMPIA 39, 679
240, O LYMPIA 40, 477
241, O LYMPIA 41, 723
242, O LYMPIA 42, 455
243, O LYMPIA 43, 1285
244, O LYMPIA 44, 482
245, O LYMPIA 45, 1181
246, O LYMPIA 46, 1293
247, O LYMPIA 47, 1239
248, O LYMPIA 48, 1825
249, O LYMPIA 49, 989
250, O LYMPIA 50, 1097
251, O LYMPIA 51, 302
252, O LYMPIA 52, 373
253, O LYMPIA 53, 948
254, O LYMPIA 54, 496
256, O LYMPIA 56, 1291
257, O LYMPIA 57, 940
258, O LYMPIA 58, 1645
259, O LYMPIA 59, 877
260, O LYMPIA 60, 1563
261, O LYMPIA 61, 12
301, LACEY 1, 1082
302, LACEY 2, 1124
303, LACEY 3, 1083
304, LACEY 4, 1046

305, LACEY 5, 520
306, LACEY 6, 645
307, LACEY 7, 1212
308, LACEY 8, 1280
309, LACEY 9, 1032
310, LACEY 10, 651
311, LACEY 11, 510
313, LACEY 13, 616
314, LACEY 14, 672
315, LACEY 15, 1689
316, LACEY 16, 395
317, LACEY 17, 1256
318, LACEY 18, 994
319, LACEY 19, 940
320, LACEY 20, 536
321, LACEY 21, 592
322, LACEY 22, 623
323, LACEY 23, 438
324, LACEY 24, 2045
327, LACEY 27, 1325
328, LACEY 28, 636
329, LACEY 29, 1984
330, LACEY 30, 1773
331, LACEY 31, 1878
332, LACEY 32, 1766
333, LACEY 33, 745
334, LACEY 34, 543
335, LACEY 35, 907
336, LACEY 36, 1355
337, LACEY 37, 338
339, LACEY 39, 1709
340, LACEY 40, 1989
341, LACEY 41, 764
342, LACEY 42, 1176
343, LACEY 43, 2097
344, LACEY 44, 1708
345, LACEY 45, 963
346, LACEY 46, 1662
347, LACEY 47, 1248
348, LACEY 48, 1590
349, LACEY 49, 488
351, LACEY 51, 619

352, LACEY 52, 24
353, LACEY 53, <Null>
354, LACEY 54, 1266
355, LACEY 55, 1234
356, LACEY 56, 1104
357, LACEY 57, 1215
358, LACEY 58, 1391
401, TUMWATER 1, 1718
402, TUMWATER 2, 766
403, TUMWATER 3, 1598
404, TUMWATER 4, 1280
405, TUMWATER 5, 790
406, TUMWATER 6, 1285
407, TUMWATER 7, 672
408, TUMWATER 8, 1321
409, TUMWATER 9, 914
410, TUMWATER 10, 2053
411, TUMWATER 11, 1270
412, TUMWATER 12, 813
413, TUMWATER 13, 453
414, TUMWATER 14, 578
415, TUMWATER 15, 1361
424, TUMWATER 24, 735
427, TUMWATER 27, 1283
428, TUMWATER 28, 1759
429, TUMWATER 29, 8
430, TUMWATER 30, 1099
431, TUMWATER 31, 1521
432, TUMWATER 32, 1276
433, TUMWATER 33, 774
501, TENINO  1, 958
502, TENINO  2, 912
601, RAINIER 1, 1385
602, RAINIER 2, 984
701, YELM 1, 2200
702, YELM 2, 1467
703, YELM 3, 2791
704, YELM 4, 2047
705, YELM 5, 2112
801, BUCO DA, 592

Cities Urban Growth Areas

Current Commissioner Residence Precinct 
County Com m issioner Port Com m issioner

2020 Census Tota l Popula tion b y Voter Prec inc t

DRAFT OPTION A
8/29/2022 



BUCODA

LACEY

OLYMPIA

RAINIER

TENINO

TUMWATER

YELM

044
(POP
700)

131
(POP 578)

160
(POP 944)

191
(POP 1204)

066
(POP 652)

101
(POP 728)

134
(POP 674)

102
(POP
818)

176
(POP 1003)

106
(POP 1074)

094
(POP 919)

105
(POP 1108)

039
(POP 1128)172

(POP 662)

133
(POP 797)

195
(POP 679)

104
(POP 569)

347
(POP 1248)132

(POP 687)

103
(POP 510)

095
(POP 733)

183
(POP
752)

065
(POP 1008)

175
(POP 978)

135
(POP
727)

348
(POP 1590)

096
(POP 795)

129
(POP 851)

343
(POP 2097)

063
(POP 643) 324

(POP 2045)

047
(POP 890)

139
(POP 1268)

174
(POP 718)

136
(POP 1566)

107
(POP 790)259

(POP
877)

201
(POP 1146)

140
(POP 721)

035
(POP 410) 224

(POP 772) 221
(POP 964) 112

(POP 1141)

057
(POP 605)

246
(POP 1293)

253
(POP
948)

189
(POP 1136)

059
(POP 1386)

237
(POP 1773)

223
(POP 1089)

213
(POP 774) 204

(POP 883)

206
(POP 1279)

111
(POP 1341)

249
(POP 989)

217
(POP 679)

301
(POP 1082)

245
(POP 1181)

254
(POP
496)

260
(POP 1563)

257
(POP
940) 091

(POP 1227)

207
(POP 1653) 244

(POP 482)
119

(POP 2123)226
(POP 643)

218
(POP 897)

220
(POP 495)

169
(POP 1514)

212
(POP 2019)

092
(POP 1755)

228
(POP
1581)

141
(POP 673)

258
(POP
1645)

248
(POP 1825)215

(POP 1080)

333
(POP 745)250

(POP 1097)
205

(POP
1367)

309
(POP
1032)

118
(POP 1570)

256
(POP
1291)

230
(POP
843)

202
(POP 2425) 033

(POP
2521)

214
(POP 545)

210
(POP
692)

308
(POP 1280)

219
(POP 1437)

229
(POP 749)

304
(POP 1046)247

(POP 1239)

319
(POP
940)

227
(POP 774)

251
(POP
302)

306
(POP
645)

115
(POP
1584)

310
(POP
651)

337
(POP
338)232

(POP 1431)
211

(POP
644) 313

(POP
616) 168

(POP 899)
241

(POP 723) 316
(POP
395)

407
(POP 672)

239
(POP
679)

328
(POP
636)240

(POP
477)

311
(POP
510)

320
(POP
536)216

(POP 171)

303
(POP
1083)

408
(POP
1321)

321
(POP 592)

208
(POP
623)

209
(POP 1621)

307
(POP
1212)

335
(POP 907)

415
(POP 1361)

401
(POP
1718)

305
(POP
520)

116
(POP 733)

242
(POP 455)

117
(POP 180)427

(POP
1283)

173
(POP 522)

314
(POP
672)

402
(POP 766) 231

(POP 726)

403
(POP 1598)

341
(POP
764)

412
(POP 813)

235
(POP 1307)

190
(POP 545)

317
(POP 1256)

067
(POP 4)

164
(POP 924)

340
(POP
1989)

424
(POP 735)

331
(POP 1878)

090
(POP 1485)

069
(POP 47) 069

(POP
47)

186
(POP 1589)

163
(POP
1182)

070
(POP
65)

327
(POP 1325)

161
(POP 482)

197
(POP 1488)

193
(POP 1248)

339
(POP 1709)

329
(POP
1984)

413
(POP 453)

100
(POP
1143)

406
(POP 1285)

404
(POP
1280)

023
(POP 820)

120
(POP 1068)

187
(POP 1646)

330
(POP
1773) 078

(POP 630)

099
(POP 1324)

144
(POP 1114)

121
(POP
698)

414
(POP 578)

431
(POP 1521)

185
(POP 706)

097
(POP 253)

322
(POP 623)

357
(POP 1215) 332

(POP 1766)

192
(POP 1281)

405
(POP 790)

409
(POP
914)

345
(POP 963)

428
(POP 1759)

051
(POP 456)

086
(POP 790)

122
(POP 1441)

349
(POP 488)

336
(POP 1355)

083
(POP 246) 022

(POP 378)

432
(POP
1276)

145
(POP 802)

074
(POP 1606)

124
(POP 1004)

184
(POP 393)

089
(POP 1489)

146
(POP 1484)

036
(POP 941)

050
(POP 674)

126
(POP 1063)

126
(POP 1063)

704
(POP 2047)

151
(POP 1640)

701
(POP 2200)

703
(POP
2791)

703
(POP
2791)

081
(POP 436)

180
(POP 791)

062
(POP 1844)

171
(POP 752)

053
(POP 1230)

702
(POP
1467)

125
(POP 1759)

147
(POP 1056)

179
(POP 1380)

155
(POP 596)

049
(POP 875)

128
(POP 597)

045
(POP 846)

032
(POP 1348)

199
(POP 1770)

601
(POP 1385)

602
(POP 984)

060
(POP 1494)

127
(POP 568)

055
(POP 947) 501

(POP 958)

130
(POP 548)

025
(POP 646)

031
(POP 362)

046
(POP 1492)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

148
(POP 729)

158
(POP 973)

153
(POP 1783)

170
(POP 1302)

027
(POP 1647)

048
(POP 1029)

157
(POP 200)

052
(POP 1269)

156
(POP 320)

077
(POP 270)

801
(POP 592)

150
(POP 847)

149
(POP 1855)

028
(POP 233)

054
(POP 1166)

165
(POP 1763)

429
(POP 8)

203
(POP 1179)

143
(POP 3)

430
(POP 1099)

030
(POP 1303)

261
(POP
12)

351
(POP 619)

705
(POP
2112)

352
(POP
24)

356
(POP 1104)

196
(POP 1740)

410
(POP
2053)

194
(POP 1461)

109
(POP
672)

076
(POP
916)

411
(POP
1270)

302
(POP 1124)

075
(POP 273)

346
(POP 1662)

024
(POP
795)

088
(POP 586)

043
(POP 1142)

162
(POP 1038)

084
(POP 334)

342
(POP 1176)

110
(POP
1010)

080
(POP
37)

315
(POP
1689)

098
(POP 1231)

433
(POP 774)

026
(POP 762)

198
(POP 1430)

354
(POP 1266)

355
(POP
1234)

082
(POP
195)

113
(POP 322)

113
(POP
322)

093
(POP 728)

020
(POP 1436)

166
(POP 136)

019
(POP 592)

358
(POP 1391)

021
(POP 450)

154
(POP 1057)

0 5

Miles

Thurston County
Five Com m issioner Distric ts

Five Commissioner Districts
District 159,096 District 259,156 District 359,004 District 458,652 District 558,885

N

The inform a tion inc lud ed  on this m a p ha s b een c om piled  b y Thurston County sta ff from  a  va riety
of sourc es a nd  is sub jec t to c ha nge without notic e. Ad d itiona l elem ents m a y b e present in rea lity
tha t a re not represented  on the m a p. O rtho-photos a nd  other d a ta  m a y not a lign. The
bound a ries d epic ted  b y these d a ta sets a re a pproxim a te. This d oc um ent is not intend ed  for use
a s a  survey prod uc t.
ALL DATA IS EXPRESSLY PRO VIDED ‘AS IS’ AND ‘WITH ALL FAULTS’. Thurston County
m a kes no representa tions or wa rra nties, express or im plied , a s to a c c ura c y, com pleteness,
tim eliness, or rights to the use of suc h inform a tion. In no event sha ll Thurston County b e lia b le
for d irec t, ind irec t, inc id enta l, consequentia l, spec ia l, or tort d a m a ges of a ny kind , inc lud ing, but
not lim ited  to, lost revenues or lost profits, rea l or a ntic ipa ted , resulting from  the use, m isuse or
relia nc e of the inform a tion conta ined  on this m a p. If a ny portion of this m a p or d isc la im er is
m issing or a ltered , Thurston County rem oves itself from  a ll responsib ility from  the m a p a nd  the
d a ta  c onta ined  within. The burd en for d eterm ining fitness for use lies entirely with the user a nd
the user is solely responsib le for und ersta nd ing the a c c ura c y lim ita tion of the inform a tion
conta ined  in this m a p.

Crea ted  b y SLS on 8/29/2022

019, FO UR CO RNERS SO UTH, 592
020, GRAND MO UND WEST, 1436
021, VIO LET PRAIRIE SO UTH, 450
022, EATO N CREEK NO RTH, 378
023, PATTISO N EAST, 820
024, KINWO O D EAST, 795
025, HENNESS NO RTH, 646
026, HARTWO O D SO UTH, 762
027, CLEAR LAKE SO UTH, 1647
028, CO UGAR MO UNTAIN, 233
030, CLEAR LAKE NO RTH, 1303
031, LACKAMAS, 362
032, MO RRIS, 1348
033, EVERGREEN BALLRO O M, 2521
035, KAISER, 410
036, RICH, 941
039, JO NES BEACH, 1128
043, UNIVERSITY, 1142
044, STEAMBO AT ISLAND, 700
045, RO CKY PRAIRIE, 846
046, LAWRENCE LAKE, 1492
047, WO O DARD CREEK, 890
048, MICHIGAN HILL, 1029
049, SCO TT LAKE SO UTH, 875
050, SALMO N CREEK, 674
051, SPURGEO N CRK, 456
052, JAMES, 1269
053, VAIL, 1230
054, RO CHESTER 5, 1166
055, RO CHESTER 4, 947
057, MEDICINE CREEK, 605
058, SKO KO MISH, 1774
059, PLEASANT HILL, 1386
060, SMITH PRAIRIE, 1494
062, BLACK RIVER, 1844
063, AMES, 643
065, LUHR BEACH, 1008
066, FISHTRAP, 652
067, QUINCE, 4
069, SIMMO NS 3, 47
070, SIMMO NS 4, 65
074, PINES, 1606

075, LO NG LAKE, 273
076, HAWK ACRES, 916
077, ZENKNER VALLEY, 270
078, TRI LAKES, 630
080, TO LMIE, 37
081, MILITARY, 436
082, GLEN TERRA, 195
083, PRINE, 246
084, GLENWO O D, 334
086, GREENRIDGE, 790
088, WO O DLAND, 586
089, TILLEY, 1489
090, SWEET BRIAR, 1485
091, DEERBRUSH, 1227
092, MUSHRO O M CO RNER, 1755
093, TRAILBLAZER, 728
094, FRYE CO VE, 919
095, O YSTER BAY, 733
096, SUMMIT LAKE, 795
097, DELRIDGE, 253
098, MARVIN, 1231
099, ALPINE, 1324
100, HEWITT LAKE, 1143
101, ZANGLE, 728
102, BO STO N HARBO R, 818
103, GULL HARBO R, 510
104, FRIENDLY GRO VE, 569
105, SO UTH BAY, 1108
106, PUGET, 1074
107, BIGELO W, 790
109, PLEASANT GLADE, 672
110, MO NTGO MERY, 1010
111, NISQUALLY, 1341
112, RO O SEVELT, 1141
113, KINWO O D WEST, 322
115, FO REST, 1584
116, ST CLAIR, 733
117, HICKS, 180
118, FLEETWO O D, 1570
119, LYDIA HAWK, 2123
120, HAYS, 1068
121, INDIAN SUMMER, 698

122, CHAMBERS, 1441
124, FRISTO E, 1004
125, DESCHUTES, 1759
126, LO NGMIRE, 1063
127, RUTH PRAIRIE, 568
128, WEIR PRAIRIE, 597
129, CO LLEGE, 851
130, BALD HILLS, 548
131, HUNTER PO INT, 578
132, GRIFFIN, 687
133, SCHNEIDERS PRAIRIE, 797
134, CO O PER PO INT, 674
135, BUTLER CO VE, 727
136, BRO ADWAY, 1566
139, PLAINVIEW, 1268
140, MUD BAY, 721
141, MCLANE, 673
143, BUSH PRAIRIE, 3
144, BLACK LAKE, 1114
145, DELPHI, 802
146, SO UTH UNIO N, 1484
147, PLUMB, 1056
148, SCATTER CREEK, 729
149, MCINTO SH, 1855
150, VIO LET PRAIRIE NO RTH, 847
151, LITTLERO CK, 1640
153, RO CHESTER 1, 1783
154, RO CHESTER 2, 1057
155, SCO TT LAKE NO RTH, 596
156, GRAND MO UND EAST, 320
157, GIBSO N VALLEY, 200
158, SKO O KUMCHUCK, 973
160, JO HNSO N PO INT, 944
161, WARDS, 482
162, THO MPSO N, 1038
163, SMITH LAKE, 1182
164, EVERGREEN SHO RES, 924
165, SUNWO O D LAKES, 1763
166, EATO N CREEK SO UTH, 136
168, HO LMES, 899
169, MCALLISTER CREEK, 1514
170, RO CHESTER 3, 1302

171, WADDELL CREEK, 752
172, TYKLE CO VE, 662
173, CAMELO T, 522
174, FRENCH, 718
175, SUNSET BEACH, 978
176, HENDERSO N, 1003
178, PATTISO N WEST, 423
179, FO UR CO RNERS NO RTH, 1380
180, STEDMAN, 791
183, BEACH CREST, 752
184, SCHELLER, 393
185, FAIR O AKS, 706
186, WILDERNESS, 1589
187, MULLEN, 1646
189, SLEATER KINNEY, 1136
190, LAKESIDE, 545
191, GALLAGHER CO VE, 1204
192, EAST O LYMPIA, 1281
193, BERRY VALLEY, 1248
194, HARTWO O D NO RTH, 1461
195, LIBBY, 679
196, MEADO WS, 1740
197, SUMMERSET, 1488
198, HENNESS SO UTH, 1430
199, BEAVER CRK, 1770
201, O LYMPIA 1, 1146
202, O LYMPIA 2, 2425
203, O LYMPIA 3, 1179
204, O LYMPIA 4, 883
205, O LYMPIA 5, 1367
206, O LYMPIA 6, 1279
207, O LYMPIA 7, 1653
208, O LYMPIA 8, 623
209, O LYMPIA 9, 1621
210, O LYMPIA 10, 692
211, O LYMPIA 11, 644
212, O LYMPIA 12, 2019
213, O LYMPIA 13, 774
214, O LYMPIA 14, 545
215, O LYMPIA 15, 1080
216, O LYMPIA 16, 171
217, O LYMPIA 17, 679

218, O LYMPIA 18, 897
219, O LYMPIA 19, 1437
220, O LYMPIA 20, 495
221, O LYMPIA 21, 964
223, O LYMPIA 23, 1089
224, O LYMPIA 24, 772
225, O LYMPIA 25, 1195
226, O LYMPIA 26, 643
227, O LYMPIA 27, 774
228, O LYMPIA 28, 1581
229, O LYMPIA 29, 749
230, O LYMPIA 30, 843
231, O LYMPIA 31, 726
232, O LYMPIA 32, 1431
235, O LYMPIA 35, 1307
237, O LYMPIA 37, 1773
239, O LYMPIA 39, 679
240, O LYMPIA 40, 477
241, O LYMPIA 41, 723
242, O LYMPIA 42, 455
243, O LYMPIA 43, 1285
244, O LYMPIA 44, 482
245, O LYMPIA 45, 1181
246, O LYMPIA 46, 1293
247, O LYMPIA 47, 1239
248, O LYMPIA 48, 1825
249, O LYMPIA 49, 989
250, O LYMPIA 50, 1097
251, O LYMPIA 51, 302
252, O LYMPIA 52, 373
253, O LYMPIA 53, 948
254, O LYMPIA 54, 496
256, O LYMPIA 56, 1291
257, O LYMPIA 57, 940
258, O LYMPIA 58, 1645
259, O LYMPIA 59, 877
260, O LYMPIA 60, 1563
261, O LYMPIA 61, 12
301, LACEY 1, 1082
302, LACEY 2, 1124
303, LACEY 3, 1083
304, LACEY 4, 1046

305, LACEY 5, 520
306, LACEY 6, 645
307, LACEY 7, 1212
308, LACEY 8, 1280
309, LACEY 9, 1032
310, LACEY 10, 651
311, LACEY 11, 510
313, LACEY 13, 616
314, LACEY 14, 672
315, LACEY 15, 1689
316, LACEY 16, 395
317, LACEY 17, 1256
318, LACEY 18, 994
319, LACEY 19, 940
320, LACEY 20, 536
321, LACEY 21, 592
322, LACEY 22, 623
323, LACEY 23, 438
324, LACEY 24, 2045
327, LACEY 27, 1325
328, LACEY 28, 636
329, LACEY 29, 1984
330, LACEY 30, 1773
331, LACEY 31, 1878
332, LACEY 32, 1766
333, LACEY 33, 745
334, LACEY 34, 543
335, LACEY 35, 907
336, LACEY 36, 1355
337, LACEY 37, 338
339, LACEY 39, 1709
340, LACEY 40, 1989
341, LACEY 41, 764
342, LACEY 42, 1176
343, LACEY 43, 2097
344, LACEY 44, 1708
345, LACEY 45, 963
346, LACEY 46, 1662
347, LACEY 47, 1248
348, LACEY 48, 1590
349, LACEY 49, 488
351, LACEY 51, 619

352, LACEY 52, 24
353, LACEY 53, <Null>
354, LACEY 54, 1266
355, LACEY 55, 1234
356, LACEY 56, 1104
357, LACEY 57, 1215
358, LACEY 58, 1391
401, TUMWATER 1, 1718
402, TUMWATER 2, 766
403, TUMWATER 3, 1598
404, TUMWATER 4, 1280
405, TUMWATER 5, 790
406, TUMWATER 6, 1285
407, TUMWATER 7, 672
408, TUMWATER 8, 1321
409, TUMWATER 9, 914
410, TUMWATER 10, 2053
411, TUMWATER 11, 1270
412, TUMWATER 12, 813
413, TUMWATER 13, 453
414, TUMWATER 14, 578
415, TUMWATER 15, 1361
424, TUMWATER 24, 735
427, TUMWATER 27, 1283
428, TUMWATER 28, 1759
429, TUMWATER 29, 8
430, TUMWATER 30, 1099
431, TUMWATER 31, 1521
432, TUMWATER 32, 1276
433, TUMWATER 33, 774
501, TENINO  1, 958
502, TENINO  2, 912
601, RAINIER 1, 1385
602, RAINIER 2, 984
701, YELM 1, 2200
702, YELM 2, 1467
703, YELM 3, 2791
704, YELM 4, 2047
705, YELM 5, 2112
801, BUCO DA, 592

Cities Urban Growth Areas

Current Commissioner Residence Precinct 
County Com m issioner Port Com m issioner

2020 Census Tota l Popula tion b y Voter Prec inc t

DRAFT OPTION B
8/29/2022 



BUCODA

LACEY

OLYMPIA

RAINIER

TENINO

TUMWATER

YELM

044
(POP
700)

131
(POP 578)

160
(POP 944)

191
(POP 1204)

066
(POP 652)

101
(POP 728)

134
(POP 674)

102
(POP
818)

176
(POP 1003)

106
(POP 1074)

094
(POP 919)

105
(POP 1108)

039
(POP 1128)172

(POP 662)

133
(POP 797)

195
(POP 679)

104
(POP 569)

347
(POP 1248)132

(POP 687)

103
(POP 510)

095
(POP 733)

183
(POP
752)

065
(POP 1008)

175
(POP 978)

135
(POP
727)

348
(POP 1590)

096
(POP 795)

129
(POP 851)

343
(POP 2097)

063
(POP 643) 324

(POP 2045)

047
(POP 890)

139
(POP 1268)

174
(POP 718)

136
(POP 1566)

107
(POP 790)259

(POP
877)

201
(POP 1146)

140
(POP 721)

035
(POP 410) 224

(POP 772) 221
(POP 964) 112

(POP 1141)

057
(POP 605)

246
(POP 1293)

253
(POP
948)

189
(POP 1136)

059
(POP 1386)

237
(POP 1773)

223
(POP 1089)

213
(POP 774) 204

(POP 883)

206
(POP 1279)

111
(POP 1341)

249
(POP 989)

217
(POP 679)

301
(POP 1082)

245
(POP 1181)

254
(POP
496)

260
(POP 1563)

257
(POP
940) 091

(POP 1227)

207
(POP 1653) 244

(POP 482)
119

(POP 2123)226
(POP 643)

218
(POP 897)

220
(POP 495)

169
(POP 1514)

212
(POP 2019)

092
(POP 1755)

228
(POP
1581)

141
(POP 673)

258
(POP
1645)

248
(POP 1825)215

(POP 1080)

333
(POP 745)250

(POP 1097)
205

(POP
1367)

309
(POP
1032)

118
(POP 1570)

256
(POP
1291)

230
(POP
843)

202
(POP 2425) 033

(POP
2521)

214
(POP 545)

210
(POP
692)

308
(POP 1280)

219
(POP 1437)

229
(POP 749)

304
(POP 1046)247

(POP 1239)

319
(POP
940)

227
(POP 774)

251
(POP
302)

306
(POP
645)

115
(POP
1584)

310
(POP
651)

337
(POP
338)232

(POP 1431)
211

(POP
644) 313

(POP
616) 168

(POP 899)
241

(POP 723) 316
(POP
395)

407
(POP 672)

239
(POP
679)

328
(POP
636)240

(POP
477)

311
(POP
510)

320
(POP
536)216

(POP 171)

303
(POP
1083)

408
(POP
1321)

321
(POP 592)

208
(POP
623)

209
(POP 1621)

307
(POP
1212)

335
(POP 907)

415
(POP 1361)

401
(POP
1718)

305
(POP
520)

116
(POP 733)

242
(POP 455)

117
(POP 180)427

(POP
1283)

173
(POP 522)

314
(POP
672)

402
(POP 766) 231

(POP 726)

403
(POP 1598)

341
(POP
764)

412
(POP 813)

235
(POP 1307)

190
(POP 545)

317
(POP 1256)

067
(POP 4)

164
(POP 924)

340
(POP
1989)

424
(POP 735)

331
(POP 1878)

090
(POP 1485)

069
(POP 47) 069

(POP
47)

186
(POP 1589)

163
(POP
1182)

070
(POP
65)

327
(POP 1325)

161
(POP 482)

197
(POP 1488)

193
(POP 1248)

339
(POP 1709)

329
(POP
1984)

413
(POP 453)

100
(POP
1143)

406
(POP 1285)

404
(POP
1280)

023
(POP 820)

120
(POP 1068)

187
(POP 1646)

330
(POP
1773) 078

(POP 630)

099
(POP 1324)

144
(POP 1114)

121
(POP
698)

414
(POP 578)

431
(POP 1521)

185
(POP 706)

097
(POP 253)

322
(POP 623)

357
(POP 1215) 332

(POP 1766)

192
(POP 1281)

405
(POP 790)

409
(POP
914)

345
(POP 963)

428
(POP 1759)

051
(POP 456)

086
(POP 790)

122
(POP 1441)

349
(POP 488)

336
(POP 1355)

083
(POP 246) 022

(POP 378)

432
(POP
1276)

145
(POP 802)

074
(POP 1606)

124
(POP 1004)

184
(POP 393)

089
(POP 1489)

146
(POP 1484)

036
(POP 941)

050
(POP 674)

126
(POP 1063)

126
(POP 1063)

704
(POP 2047)

151
(POP 1640)

701
(POP 2200)

703
(POP
2791)

703
(POP
2791)

081
(POP 436)

180
(POP 791)

062
(POP 1844)

171
(POP 752)

053
(POP 1230)

702
(POP
1467)

125
(POP 1759)

147
(POP 1056)

179
(POP 1380)

155
(POP 596)

049
(POP 875)

128
(POP 597)

045
(POP 846)

032
(POP 1348)

199
(POP 1770)

601
(POP 1385)

602
(POP 984)

060
(POP 1494)

127
(POP 568)

055
(POP 947) 501

(POP 958)

130
(POP 548)

025
(POP 646)

031
(POP 362)

046
(POP 1492)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

502
(POP 912)

148
(POP 729)

158
(POP 973)

153
(POP 1783)

170
(POP 1302)

027
(POP 1647)

048
(POP 1029)

157
(POP 200)

052
(POP 1269)

156
(POP 320)

077
(POP 270)

801
(POP 592)

150
(POP 847)

149
(POP 1855)

028
(POP 233)

054
(POP 1166)

165
(POP 1763)

429
(POP 8)

203
(POP 1179)

143
(POP 3)

430
(POP 1099)

030
(POP 1303)

261
(POP
12)

351
(POP 619)

705
(POP
2112)

352
(POP
24)

356
(POP 1104)

196
(POP 1740)

410
(POP
2053)

194
(POP 1461)

109
(POP
672)

076
(POP
916)

411
(POP
1270)

302
(POP 1124)

075
(POP 273)

346
(POP 1662)

024
(POP
795)

088
(POP 586)

043
(POP 1142)

162
(POP 1038)

084
(POP 334)

342
(POP 1176)

110
(POP
1010)

080
(POP
37)

315
(POP
1689)

098
(POP 1231)

433
(POP 774)

026
(POP 762)

198
(POP 1430)

354
(POP 1266)

355
(POP
1234)

082
(POP
195)

113
(POP 322)

113
(POP
322)

093
(POP 728)

020
(POP 1436)

166
(POP 136)

019
(POP 592)

358
(POP 1391)

021
(POP 450)

154
(POP 1057)

353
(POP 0)

0 5

Miles

Thurston County
Five Com m issioner Distric ts

Five Commissioner Districts
District 1 58,763 District 2 59,156 District 3 59,004 District 4 58,985 District 5 58,885

N

The inform a tion inc lud ed  on this m a p ha s b een c om piled  b y Thurston County sta ff from  a  va riety
of sourc es a nd  is sub ject to c ha nge without notic e. Ad d itiona l elem ents m a y b e present in rea lity
tha t a re not represented  on the m a p. O rtho-photos a nd  other d a ta  m a y not a lign. The
bound a ries d epic ted  b y these d a ta sets a re a pproxim a te. This d oc um ent is not intend ed  for use
a s a  survey prod uct.
ALL DATA IS EXPRESSLY PRO VIDED ‘AS IS’ AND ‘WITH ALL FAULTS’. Thurston County
m a kes no representa tions or wa rra nties, express or im plied , a s to a c c ura c y, com pleteness,
tim eliness, or rights to the use of suc h inform a tion. In no event sha ll Thurston County b e lia b le
for d irec t, ind irec t, inc id enta l, consequentia l, spec ia l, or tort d a m a ges of a ny kind , inc lud ing, but
not lim ited  to, lost revenues or lost profits, rea l or a ntic ipa ted , resulting from  the use, m isuse or
relia nc e of the inform a tion c onta ined  on this m a p. If a ny portion of this m a p or d isc la im er is
m issing or a ltered , Thurston County rem oves itself from  a ll responsib ility from  the m a p a nd  the
d a ta  c onta ined  within. The burd en for d eterm ining fitness for use lies entirely with the user a nd
the user is solely responsib le for und ersta nd ing the a c c ura c y lim ita tion of the inform a tion
conta ined  in this m a p.

Crea ted  b y SLS on 9/7/2022

019, FO UR CO RNERS SO UTH, 592
020, GRAND MO UND WEST, 1436
021, VIO LET PRAIRIE SO UTH, 450
022, EATO N CREEK NO RTH, 378
023, PATTISO N EAST, 820
024, KINWO O D EAST, 795
025, HENNESS NO RTH, 646
026, HARTWO O D SO UTH, 762
027, CLEAR LAKE SO UTH, 1647
028, CO UGAR MO UNTAIN, 233
030, CLEAR LAKE NO RTH, 1303
031, LACKAMAS, 362
032, MO RRIS, 1348
033, EVERGREEN BALLRO O M, 2521
035, KAISER, 410
036, RICH, 941
039, JO NES BEACH, 1128
043, UNIVERSITY, 1142
044, STEAMBO AT ISLAND, 700
045, RO CKY PRAIRIE, 846
046, LAWRENCE LAKE, 1492
047, WO O DARD CREEK, 890
048, MICHIGAN HILL, 1029
049, SCO TT LAKE SO UTH, 875
050, SALMO N CREEK, 674
051, SPURGEO N CRK, 456
052, JAMES, 1269
053, VAIL, 1230
054, RO CHESTER 5, 1166
055, RO CHESTER 4, 947
057, MEDICINE CREEK, 605
058, SKO KO MISH, 1774
059, PLEASANT HILL, 1386
060, SMITH PRAIRIE, 1494
062, BLACK RIVER, 1844
063, AMES, 643
065, LUHR BEACH, 1008
066, FISHTRAP, 652
067, QUINCE, 4
069, SIMMO NS 3, 47
070, SIMMO NS 4, 65
074, PINES, 1606

075, LO NG LAKE, 273
076, HAWK ACRES, 916
077, ZENKNER VALLEY, 270
078, TRI LAKES, 630
080, TO LMIE, 37
081, MILITARY, 436
082, GLEN TERRA, 195
083, PRINE, 246
084, GLENWO O D, 334
086, GREENRIDGE, 790
088, WO O DLAND, 586
089, TILLEY, 1489
090, SWEET BRIAR, 1485
091, DEERBRUSH, 1227
092, MUSHRO O M CO RNER, 1755
093, TRAILBLAZER, 728
094, FRYE CO VE, 919
095, O YSTER BAY, 733
096, SUMMIT LAKE, 795
097, DELRIDGE, 253
098, MARVIN, 1231
099, ALPINE, 1324
100, HEWITT LAKE, 1143
101, ZANGLE, 728
102, BO STO N HARBO R, 818
103, GULL HARBO R, 510
104, FRIENDLY GRO VE, 569
105, SO UTH BAY, 1108
106, PUGET, 1074
107, BIGELO W, 790
109, PLEASANT GLADE, 672
110, MO NTGO MERY, 1010
111, NISQUALLY, 1341
112, RO O SEVELT, 1141
113, KINWO O D WEST, 322
115, FO REST, 1584
116, ST CLAIR, 733
117, HICKS, 180
118, FLEETWO O D, 1570
119, LYDIA HAWK, 2123
120, HAYS, 1068
121, INDIAN SUMMER, 698

122, CHAMBERS, 1441
124, FRISTO E, 1004
125, DESCHUTES, 1759
126, LO NGMIRE, 1063
127, RUTH PRAIRIE, 568
128, WEIR PRAIRIE, 597
129, CO LLEGE, 851
130, BALD HILLS, 548
131, HUNTER PO INT, 578
132, GRIFFIN, 687
133, SCHNEIDERS PRAIRIE, 797
134, CO O PER PO INT, 674
135, BUTLER CO VE, 727
136, BRO ADWAY, 1566
139, PLAINVIEW, 1268
140, MUD BAY, 721
141, MCLANE, 673
143, BUSH PRAIRIE, 3
144, BLACK LAKE, 1114
145, DELPHI, 802
146, SO UTH UNIO N, 1484
147, PLUMB, 1056
148, SCATTER CREEK, 729
149, MCINTO SH, 1855
150, VIO LET PRAIRIE NO RTH, 847
151, LITTLERO CK, 1640
153, RO CHESTER 1, 1783
154, RO CHESTER 2, 1057
155, SCO TT LAKE NO RTH, 596
156, GRAND MO UND EAST, 320
157, GIBSO N VALLEY, 200
158, SKO O KUMCHUCK, 973
160, JO HNSO N PO INT, 944
161, WARDS, 482
162, THO MPSO N, 1038
163, SMITH LAKE, 1182
164, EVERGREEN SHO RES, 924
165, SUNWO O D LAKES, 1763
166, EATO N CREEK SO UTH, 136
168, HO LMES, 899
169, MCALLISTER CREEK, 1514
170, RO CHESTER 3, 1302

171, WADDELL CREEK, 752
172, TYKLE CO VE, 662
173, CAMELO T, 522
174, FRENCH, 718
175, SUNSET BEACH, 978
176, HENDERSO N, 1003
178, PATTISO N WEST, 423
179, FO UR CO RNERS NO RTH, 1380
180, STEDMAN, 791
183, BEACH CREST, 752
184, SCHELLER, 393
185, FAIR O AKS, 706
186, WILDERNESS, 1589
187, MULLEN, 1646
189, SLEATER KINNEY, 1136
190, LAKESIDE, 545
191, GALLAGHER CO VE, 1204
192, EAST O LYMPIA, 1281
193, BERRY VALLEY, 1248
194, HARTWO O D NO RTH, 1461
195, LIBBY, 679
196, MEADO WS, 1740
197, SUMMERSET, 1488
198, HENNESS SO UTH, 1430
199, BEAVER CRK, 1770
201, O LYMPIA 1, 1146
202, O LYMPIA 2, 2425
203, O LYMPIA 3, 1179
204, O LYMPIA 4, 883
205, O LYMPIA 5, 1367
206, O LYMPIA 6, 1279
207, O LYMPIA 7, 1653
208, O LYMPIA 8, 623
209, O LYMPIA 9, 1621
210, O LYMPIA 10, 692
211, O LYMPIA 11, 644
212, O LYMPIA 12, 2019
213, O LYMPIA 13, 774
214, O LYMPIA 14, 545
215, O LYMPIA 15, 1080
216, O LYMPIA 16, 171
217, O LYMPIA 17, 679

218, O LYMPIA 18, 897
219, O LYMPIA 19, 1437
220, O LYMPIA 20, 495
221, O LYMPIA 21, 964
223, O LYMPIA 23, 1089
224, O LYMPIA 24, 772
225, O LYMPIA 25, 1195
226, O LYMPIA 26, 643
227, O LYMPIA 27, 774
228, O LYMPIA 28, 1581
229, O LYMPIA 29, 749
230, O LYMPIA 30, 843
231, O LYMPIA 31, 726
232, O LYMPIA 32, 1431
235, O LYMPIA 35, 1307
237, O LYMPIA 37, 1773
239, O LYMPIA 39, 679
240, O LYMPIA 40, 477
241, O LYMPIA 41, 723
242, O LYMPIA 42, 455
243, O LYMPIA 43, 1285
244, O LYMPIA 44, 482
245, O LYMPIA 45, 1181
246, O LYMPIA 46, 1293
247, O LYMPIA 47, 1239
248, O LYMPIA 48, 1825
249, O LYMPIA 49, 989
250, O LYMPIA 50, 1097
251, O LYMPIA 51, 302
252, O LYMPIA 52, 373
253, O LYMPIA 53, 948
254, O LYMPIA 54, 496
256, O LYMPIA 56, 1291
257, O LYMPIA 57, 940
258, O LYMPIA 58, 1645
259, O LYMPIA 59, 877
260, O LYMPIA 60, 1563
261, O LYMPIA 61, 12
301, LACEY 1, 1082
302, LACEY 2, 1124
303, LACEY 3, 1083
304, LACEY 4, 1046

305, LACEY 5, 520
306, LACEY 6, 645
307, LACEY 7, 1212
308, LACEY 8, 1280
309, LACEY 9, 1032
310, LACEY 10, 651
311, LACEY 11, 510
313, LACEY 13, 616
314, LACEY 14, 672
315, LACEY 15, 1689
316, LACEY 16, 395
317, LACEY 17, 1256
318, LACEY 18, 994
319, LACEY 19, 940
320, LACEY 20, 536
321, LACEY 21, 592
322, LACEY 22, 623
323, LACEY 23, 438
324, LACEY 24, 2045
327, LACEY 27, 1325
328, LACEY 28, 636
329, LACEY 29, 1984
330, LACEY 30, 1773
331, LACEY 31, 1878
332, LACEY 32, 1766
333, LACEY 33, 745
334, LACEY 34, 543
335, LACEY 35, 907
336, LACEY 36, 1355
337, LACEY 37, 338
339, LACEY 39, 1709
340, LACEY 40, 1989
341, LACEY 41, 764
342, LACEY 42, 1176
343, LACEY 43, 2097
344, LACEY 44, 1708
345, LACEY 45, 963
346, LACEY 46, 1662
347, LACEY 47, 1248
348, LACEY 48, 1590
349, LACEY 49, 488
351, LACEY 51, 619

352, LACEY 52, 24
353, LACEY 53, <Null>
354, LACEY 54, 1266
355, LACEY 55, 1234
356, LACEY 56, 1104
357, LACEY 57, 1215
358, LACEY 58, 1391
401, TUMWATER 1, 1718
402, TUMWATER 2, 766
403, TUMWATER 3, 1598
404, TUMWATER 4, 1280
405, TUMWATER 5, 790
406, TUMWATER 6, 1285
407, TUMWATER 7, 672
408, TUMWATER 8, 1321
409, TUMWATER 9, 914
410, TUMWATER 10, 2053
411, TUMWATER 11, 1270
412, TUMWATER 12, 813
413, TUMWATER 13, 453
414, TUMWATER 14, 578
415, TUMWATER 15, 1361
424, TUMWATER 24, 735
427, TUMWATER 27, 1283
428, TUMWATER 28, 1759
429, TUMWATER 29, 8
430, TUMWATER 30, 1099
431, TUMWATER 31, 1521
432, TUMWATER 32, 1276
433, TUMWATER 33, 774
501, TENINO  1, 958
502, TENINO  2, 912
601, RAINIER 1, 1385
602, RAINIER 2, 984
701, YELM 1, 2200
702, YELM 2, 1467
703, YELM 3, 2791
704, YELM 4, 2047
705, YELM 5, 2112
801, BUCO DA, 592

Cities Urban Growth Areas

Current Commissioner Residence Precinct 
County Com m issioner Port Com m issioner

2020 Census Tota l Popula tion b y Voter Prec inc t

DRAFT OPTION C
9/7/2022 


	01 - 09-12-2022 Commission Meeting Agenda - Adjusted
	Commission Meeting
	Monday, September 12, 2022

	02 - ILA shared staff cover memo 9-12-22
	Commission Meeting

	03 - ILA shared permit staff 9-12
	04 - Final Agreement w exhibit C_ 7-14-22
	Final July 13 2022
	Final Exhibit C July 13  2022

	05 - Cover Memo Legacy Project
	Commission Meeting

	06 - Legacy Project PPT Sept 12
	07 - cover memo marine center 9-12
	Commission Meeting

	08 - Marine Center Briefing
	09 - Marine Center Approp Request with letters
	10 - Cover Memo Resolution 2022-XX Commission Rules Update
	Commission Meeting

	11 - Resolution 2022-XX Commission Rules revised 091222 redlined
	PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSION

	12 - Cover Memo Redistricting Update
	Commission Meeting

	13 - Resolution 2022-07 Increase Commission from 3 to 5 Members
	14 - MOU Port-County Redistricting 072522
	15 - Redistricting Committee Objectives and Timelines
	16 - Joint Resolution 2021-11 Collaborate on 5 Member Commission Ballot
	JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 2021—11
	PORT OF OLYMPIA COMMISSIONERS  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

	17 - 09_09_2022RedistrictingCommitteeMtg
	Voter_Commissioner(54x35)_2020POP_FiveDistricts_DRAFTOptionA_082922 (002).pdf
	Voter_Commissioner(54x35)_2020POP_FiveDistricts_DRAFTOptionB_082922 (002).pdf
	Voter_Commissioner(54x35)_2020POP_FiveDistricts_DRAFTOptionC_090722 (002).pdf




